Company Number: 08369318

Sumisho Osaka Gas Water UK Limited
Annual Report and Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 March 2023



Sumisho Osaka Gas Water UK Limited

Contents
Page

Group Strategic Report 1
Directors’ Report 9
Independent auditors’ report to members of Sumisho Osaka Gas Water UK Limited 16
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income 19
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 20
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 21
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement 22
Motes to the Financial Statements 24
Company Balance Sheet 64
Company Statement of Changes in Equity 05

Motes to the Company Financial Statements o



Sumisho Osaka Gas Water UK Limited

Group Strategic Report

The directors present the strategic report for the year ended 31 March 2023,

Principal activities

Sumisho Osaka Gas Water UK Limited (“SOGWUK”, the *Company™) operates as a holding company lor certain
European subsidiaries of Sumitomo Corporation Japan and Osaka Gas Co. Lid. The company owns 100% ordinary

shares in East Surrey Holdings Limited (ESH), a company with investments in water and other trading and
property companies together, the “Group™.

The primary activities within the Group is to both supply water to domestic customers through Sutton and East
Surrey Water Ple ("SESW™ or “SES Water™),, a regulated public water supply company and to act as a retailer
within the water and sewerage retail market for eligible non-houschold customers through Sutton and East Surrey
Water Services Limited (“SESWS™) (trading as SES Business Water and SES Home Services). The Home
Services division provides plumbing and heating services, which cover domestic water and gas heating systems,
The other smaller subsidiaries include Advanced Minerals Limited (“AML™) which sources and processes
materials and minerals and Allmat {East Surrey) Limited {(“Allmat™), a locally based builder merchant in Kenley.

East Surrey Holdings (ESH) key hizghlights:

To strengthen ESH financial resilience, the company has committed in writing to provide support including £22m
in aggregate in the form of equity injections to ESH, and from ESH down to SESW in the period up to 31 March
2024, We expect the majority of the committed equity {over 75% of the £22m) to be paid on or prior to | December
2023, with the first and second instalment of £2m and £3m already paid as at the date of this report. These equity
injections allow SESW to deliver its capital investment programme for the next 12 months and meet its liquidity
and financial covenant requirements. The company has committed support to cover further funds if needed for
additional operating or refinancing costs.

In the event that the ongoing strategic review results in the sale of ESH within the next 12 months, the Board
expect that a new owner would be required as part of taking on SESW’s water supply licence to confirm
appropriate ongoing funding arrangements,

Sutton and East Surrey Water Ple (SESW) key highlights:

SESW, the largest company within the Group, supplies 160 million litres of clean water each day to 730,000
people in East Surrey, and parts of West Sussex, West Kent and South London. SESWs operational performance
for the vear ended 31 March 2023 has been strong. SESW has been fully focused on delivering and improving
upon the promises it has made to its customers in its Business Plan 2020-2025, which includes achieving its
leakage reduction target this year. Some key highlights of 2023 include;

e  Maintained its excellent water guality performance and is one ol the top-ranking companies in the
Drinking Water Inspectorate’s sector-wide report, published in July 2023,

¢  Ensured no restriction or hosepipe ban was imposed on its customers” use of water.

e Achieved its greenhouse gas emissions targets.

¢  Ensured that supply interruptions for its customers have been minimal and below targeted levels, despite
the challenges posed by the severe summer drought and winter freeze/thaw conditions. Unfortunately,
SESW missed its target for minimising bursts,

*  Enhanced the resilience of its water network, with more than 180,000 further customers now connected
to two water treatment works,

e Won the Utility Week Innovation Award for the SESW’s fully smart network, which allows SESW to
monitor and repair leaks in near real-time,

*  Achieved its highest ever ranking of 10th for customer satisfaction and experience {C-MeX) for the
period of January to March 2023, For the full year, SESW finished 13th, an improvement of two places
{rom prior year.

= Continued to ensure its customers benefit from SESW’s Water Support Scheme, with 19,476 eligible
customers now receiving a 30% bill reduction.

 Retained The Wildlife Trusts” Biodiversity Benchmark Award for the third yvear at Elmer Treatment
Works and a second year at Fetcham Springs in Leatherhead. SESW remains the only water company to
currently hold the accreditation,
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Community Aciivities:

SESW has continued to go bevond providing its essential public service and played an active part in the local
communities it serves. This has included:

¢  Welcoming more than 2 825 people to the state-of-the-art education centre at Bough Beech Treatment
Works in the past year, continuing to inspire future generations. SESW’s education programme has
reached a total of 4,118 people, including in-school talks.

e Visiting 140 vulnerable customers a week, to make sure the members of the community who need it most
benefit from SESW's support. This includes contact over telephone and attending local food banks,

* Partnering with Run Series to support both Run Gatwick and Run Reigate as the events™ official water
provider, avoiding more than 48,000 single-use plastic water bottles from being given out at each event.

« Continuing to work with Bore Place, a charity local to its Bough Beech site, and a number of other
partners to assess the opportunity to develop biodiversity net gain on a landscape scale.

As well as delivering strong operational performance, SESW has continued to go beyond providing its essential
public service and has played an active part in the local communities it serves.

Water plays a role in all our lives and our customers rightly expect their supply to be clean and plentiful. As we
have continued to respond to the global pandemic SESW’s performance has been tested, especially against some
of SESW’s challenging targets. However, SESW have remained focused on delivering what matters most to its
customers. That is the aim of its business plan as it was built around its customers’ priorities. Delivering against
its five pledges will not only improve the lives of its customers but will also enhance the environment and ensure
SESW is playing its part in making it better.

SESW has 5 pledges that each of its employees strives to deliver through their roles within the company. More
details can be found in the SES Water annual performance report here: hitps:/seswater.co.uk/about-
us/publications/our-annual-performance-report.

Sutton and East Surrey Water Services Limited (SESWS) key highlights:

SESWS operates as two separate trading divisions: SES Business Water and SES Home Services. The retail
market that SES Business Water operates in remains challenging however the business was sucecessful in
increasing marging on existing customers in its forward order book due to better management. The business also
re-engineered debt collection processes and improved customer service levels both of which should assist cash
collection. In current vear, SES Business Water changes its focus this year on forward contracted margin delivered
improvement throughout the vear and targets new acquisitions of more profitable customers and exit of some less
profitable customers within the portfolio.

SES Home Services persisted in its efforts to broaden its sources of income beyond its conventional insurance
operations. SESWS established fresh connections with claims managers who catered to clients of alternate
insurance firms, and it also extended its services to the emerging business water sector.

On 9 February 2023, SES Home Services within SESWS established a contractual arrangement with HomeServe
Membership Lid (HomeServe), one of the UK’s leading home repair companies, which took effect on 1 April
2023, Under this agreement, SESWS is selling its renewal rights to an existing Home Emergency insurance policy
book held by 9,000 SESW customers to HomeServe for total cash consideration up to £900,000 {comprised of a
fixed portion of £500k and a variable portion of £400k based on the number of policy successfully migrated) and
launched an affinity parinership between SES Home Services and HomeServe, which will allow SESWS 1o
promote a range of plumbing, gas, and electrics services to its customers,

Principal benchmarks for the Home Services division encompass gross profit, the quantity of insurance policies
vended, and operating expenditures.

As for the Business Water division, crucial metrics encompass gross margin spanning diverse segments, overhead
expenditure, and the collection of cash.
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Additional existing pivotal performance indicators encompass:

Home Services
¢  The initial repair success rate for plumbing and heating service tasks

« (Call abandonment rate for incoming calls from customers at the contact centre of SES Home Services
Business Water

* Expansion in sales

SESWS is strategically poised to further its expansion within the non-residential water retail sector in England
and Scotland. It envisions diversification beyond mere water supply to encompass innovative digital services. The
Home Services segment anticipates leveraging its implemented changes to achieve substantial growth in the
Southeast region, increasing both service offerings and job execution.

Other SOGWUK Group highlights:

e Allmat’s revenue dropped slightly by £136k due to the impact of the cost-of-living crisis. However, its
operating loss reduced significantly by over 50% as a result of its cost saving exercise.

¢  Advanced Minerals Limited continued to record a slight increase in revenue this year but with a decline
in gross profit margin given increasing competitiveness within its industry.

¢  We have continued to put the health and wellbeing of our emplovees and customers first, whilst siriving
to do the right thing across all of the industries that we operate within,

Climate change

We have established multiple workstreams to ensure we are assessing the potential areas of challenge and risk in
relation to climate change and preparing for the additional workload and investment needed, including the
requirement to appoint appropriately qualified resources to plan for and respond to the potential risk of water
resource availability and ability to supply and meet regulatory and customer expectations on maintaining
biodiversity and reducing energy and carbon use.

Cost of living

Whilst considered as an overriding contributory factor in the most recent review of the relevant risks in the register,
further significant rises in inflation and the cost-of-living warrant specific consideration and mitigation strategies,

Sumisho Osaka Gas Water UK Group (SOGWUK) Risks
The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group include;

* Interest rate and liquidity risks - The majority of the interest rate risks are associated with SESW and its
index-linked bond. SESW managed its principal interest rate risk by issuing an Index-Linked Bond, the
interest rate on this Bond is 2.874% in addition to index-linking of the capital value. SESW manages its
liquidity risk through the borrowing facilities with the Royal Bank of Scotland and National Westminster
Bank. The impact of inflation continues to be a significant risk to SESW’s cost of debt.

*  Cash Collection —increased risk of bad debt driven by poor cash collection as household customers suffer
financial hardship amid cost-ol-living crisis and also within the non-houschold retail market that SES
Business Water operates within as businesses continue to recover from the impact of closures and
downturn in the economy. Both are mitigated through regular reviews, credit control review, prompt and
accurate billing, use of technology to customer billing and settlement records, implementation of cash
collection procedures and bad debi recovery via collection agencies.

Regulatory risk on resetting regulatory target and returns in PR24 Business Plan (covening 2025-2030).
Failure to comply with legal and regulatory obligations, mitigated by formal processes for compliance
with market codes {e.g. MOSL), dedicated resources and independent assurance.

+  Failure of economic regulation within SESW where it has insufficient funding to fulfil its duties mitigated
by having a stable and transparent regulatory regime, detailed business planning process including
consultation with customers and an effective relationship with Ofwat.

3
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s Cyber Attacks causing interference with operational controls or loss of personal data, mitigated through
multiple laver security, controls and employee awareness training.

=  Failure of the billing systems and other core applications across SESW and SESWS — full disaster
recovery arrangements in place and adequate liquidity for temporary loss of billing capability to make
the core systems more resilient and retrievable in case of major failure.

*  Operational risks across the Group particularly within the operational areas of SESW and SES Home
Services which employs gas and plumbing engineers who work closely with gas on a regular basis, the
risk of harm or injury is mitigated by strong health and safety protocol and training.

# TFailure of the billing systems and other core applications across SESW and SESWS — full disaster
recovery arrangements in place and adequate liquidity for temporary loss of billing capability to make
the core systems more resilient and retrievable in case of major failure.

#  Operational risks across the Group particularly within the operational areas of SESW and SES Home
Services which employs gas and plumbing engineers who work closely with gas on a regular basis, the
risk of harm or injury is mitigated by strong health and safety protocol and training.

+ SES Business Water continues to operate under a difficult trading environment with thin gross profit
margin being achieved in current vear. The aim to grow its customer base and maintain its gross margin
remains difficult under current market situation,

+  Financial risk — given the current strategic review, despite management's assessment and shareholder
support, there is uncertainty on the outcome of the strategic review and also associated financing
solutions dependent upon the outcome. Management is continuing to work on financing strategies
alongside the ongoing review.

Other risks that are closely monitored include;

e Investment risk - The key factor for the Group managing this risk is to maintain and enhance the close
relationship with its customers and suppliers. The subsidiary undertakings continue to develop and
provide innovative value added services at every stage of the supply chain.

e Asal 31 March 2023, SESW has a £50 million five-year and a £25 million three-year revolving credit
{acility and a £15 million overdrafi facility which were fully drawn down. During the current year, SESW
and SESWS also secured and drew down loans of £7m and £4m from the immediate parent company of
ESH, Sumisho Osaka Gas Water UK Limited (“SOGWUK™), for their operational needs and for the
purpose of managing the fnancial covenants ratio (including the Adjusted Interest Cover Ratio
Requirement) at the year-end date. Other Group companies manage their own liguidity risk through
overdrall facilities and are supported by East Surrey Holdings Limited as parent entity with loans if
Necessary.

e Currency risks - The Group does not use derivative financial instruments to hedge its exposure to credit
and interest rate risks in the normal course of its business. The Group has minimal exposure to currency
risk since nearly all activities are conducted in the UK and all borrowings are denominated in £ sterling.

¢ Financial risk management — please refer to note 21 (d) for details.

Financial Performance and Position

The financial performance of the Group has remained challenging this vear with some improvement in the retail
non-household market from Covid-19 despite the impact of the cost-of-living crisis on customers, upward cost
pressures on supply chain, and the impact of rising inflation. The Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 March
2023 was £125.2m (2022: £114.0m), an increase of 9.8%. Operating costs increased to £125.7m (2022: £109.9m)
that led to an operating loss of £1.8m, representing a decrease of £9.7m compared to an operating profit of £7.9m
in 2022.

Finance costs increased by 97.4% to £30.0m (2022: £15.2m). This increase is driven by the significant increase
in indexation charge by £15.5m in SESW relating to the indexation of its £100m index-linked bond as a result of
high inflation rate in current year.

The Group’'s loss before taxation was £30.8m (2022: £6.9m) and loss afler tax was £24 4m (2022: £18 9m), this
15 primarily due to the impact of surging operating costs and indexation charge on the £100m index-linked bond
under high inflation environment in the current year.
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The Group’s total assets increased by £14.0m to £613.1m (2022: £599.1m). This is mainly due to the capital
investments made by SESW in current year and increase in cash and cash equivalents by £13.5m to £44 3m.

Under TAS 36 the Directors have assessed at the balance sheet date whether there is any indication that the
Company's investment in East Surrey Holdings Limited (ESH) may be impaired. Taking these assessments into
consideration an impairment of £13.1m was recognised for the year ended 31 March 2023 on the Company
standalone balance sheet. Further details can be found in note 33 of the financial statements,

Environmental Improvements

Protecting and enhancing the environment is a pledge within SESW's Business Plan and a long-term necessity
because SESW is reliant on the chalk aquifer beneath the North Downs and a number of local rivers for the water
it supplies. SESW is working with its neighbouring water companies to understand how it can use these chalk
sources more sustainably and to identify alternative sources where needed so it has resilient water supplies for the
future.

SESW continued its great work this year and retained the Wildlife Trusts” Biodiversity Benchmark Award (at its
Elmer Treatment Works for two years in a row, and now also hold one for its Fetcham Springs site), demonstrating
its commitment to making its sites more attractive to plants and animals and the ability for operational activity to
work alongside biodiversity. SESW is also working towards achieving a third Biodiversity Benchmark Award for
the Bough Beech Water Treatment in 2024,

In addition, SESW reduced its carbon impact and increased the number of electric vehicles in its fleet. 1ts vehicle
fleet now comprises 30% electric and hybrid vehicles and the aim is to reach 100% by 2030, with each electric
car helping to save 2-3 tonnes of CO2e per vear, as well as reducing the impact on local air quality. For more
information on SESW’s total carbon emission, please see “SESW Greenhouse gas emissions™ in the Directors’
Report.

Helping to guide its long-term environmental strategy is its Environmental Scrutiny Panel (ESP) which has
operated since April 2020 and is a group of experienced and passionate environmental champions who want to
see it put environmental sustammability at the heart of its decision-making.

Capital Investment

During the third year of AMP 7 SESW invested £25.3m (2022: £27.0m) in its capital invesiment programme.
Within SESW key projects include:

¢ Investment in the ongoing replacement of pipes in its distribution network £5.8m (2022: £6.7m) enabling
targeting replacement based on age, condition and performance of our network.

o A further £1.9m (2022: £1.8m) to improve its resilience mains (to ensure water can be efficiently moved
around its supply area now, and in the future).

o E£0.3m (2022: £0.8m) was spent on extending its network into new housing developments,

o  £7.7m (2022: £8.9m) was invested on replacing and upgrading its treatment works, pumping stations,
service reservoirs and other operational sites, including SESW's final phase of refurbishment at Bough
Beech,

o A further £3.5m (2022: £3.2m) was invested into its ongoing metering programme to ensure SESW can
accurately bill and monitor water usage and predict future demand trends.

o £1.4m (2022: £3 1m) was invested in IT, including replacing its billing system that went live in October
2021,

e Other expenditure on capex including facilities and its laboratories totalled £4.2m (2022: £2 5m).
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Net Debt

Total debt for the Group is £340.0m, an increase of £51 5m (2022; £288 5m). The increase represented £22. 1m
RPI indexation on the index-linked bond, additional borrowings of RCF loan of £16.0m and short-term bank loan
of £15m for operational needs of the Group and for the purpose of meeting the financial covenants {including the
Adjusted Interest Cover Ratio Requirement) at year-end date.

Cash and liquid resources increased by £13.5m in current year to £44 3m (2022: £30.8m) which comprised a
restricted cash of £8.7m (2022: £5.8m) in relation to the secured index-linked bond.

The level of gearing is a key ratio under the covenants associated with the £36m private placement and is measured
by the ratio of total net indebtedness to regulated asset value. The ratio as defined by the £36m private placement
agreement was 89% at 31 March 2023 which is within the 95% covenant, Interest cover ratio was 2.96 which is
within the Group’s permitted range of greater than 1.1:1.0.

Financial guarantee contract

Sumisho Osaka Gas Water UK Limited (SOGWUK) 15 a guarantor to Sutton and East Surrey Water Services
Limited (SESWS) for a credit facility provided by HSBC, The total guaranteed amount is £15m as at the balance
sheet date of these financial statements. The fair value of the liability for the financial guarantee has been
determined using the interest rate differentials method. The fair value of liability was recorded in Company
balance sheet in 2022 at a value of £1.97m and is amortised over 10 years on a straight line basis.

Dividends

During the year the Group paid no dividend to its parent company Summit Water Limited (SWL) and Osaka Gas
UK Limited (OGUK) (2022; £3.5 million). No further dividends have been proposed or declared up to and
including the date of signing these financial statements.

Statement of the directors in performance of their statutory duties in accordance with s172(1) of the
Companies Act 2006

For each company that operates within the Group, the directors have acted in a way that they consider, in good
faith, to be most likely to promote the success of the Company for the benefit of its members as a whole, and in
doing so had regard, amongst other matters, to:

The likely consequence of any decision in the long term

The interest of the Group’s employees

The need to foster the Group’s business relationships with suppliers, customers and others
The impact of the Group’s operations on the community and the environment

The desirability of the Group to maintain a reputation for high standards of business conduct
The need to act fairly between members of the company within the Group

The Directors fulfils their statutory duties by following the same standards and good practices as in the Group.
The Directors demonstrate good governance and leadership by taking up their responsibilities toward each group
entity within the Group. This is being achieved by considering their cultures and interests during the decision
making process in the Group.

More details can be found in the SES Water annual performance report here: hitps:/seswater.co.uk/about-
us/publications/our-annual -performance-report,
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An overview of engagement with stakeholders by SESW, which enables the Directors to comply with their legal
duty under 5.172 of the Companies Act 2006, is shown as below:

Stakeholder IHow we engage lmpact of engagement

group

Customers s Regular SES Water updates by [SESW Business Plan targets reflect customer priorities
direct email to customers and including:
social media

o Our dedicated “Voice of the e 15% leakage reduction.

Customer’ programme which e 25000 people on our Water Support Scheme.
includes a range of activity to e 100% of people will be served by more than one
better inform the decisions and treatment works.

improvements that we make, 90% of our customers on a meter.

*  Online ‘Talk on Water’ e Sipnificant investment being made in its digital
community. capability to better serve customers

o Our education programme. *  Offering excellent customer service through different

*  Attendance al communily events. channels such as telephone and face-to-face, as well

o Our independent Customer as digital.

Scrutiny Panel.

*  Dedicated research via focus
group for customers with
particular needs and young
people.

*  “Your water, your say’ meeting
with customers.

Employees *  Regular employee engagement * Investors in People silver accreditation.
survey, ¢ Performance management system and skills strategy

*  Open forums involving all in place.
employees and the directors and | «  Employee volunteering scheme.
senior management. « Employvee Referral Scheme.

*  Dedicated Board member »  Constructive negotiation through the Joint
responsible for employee Megotiation and Consultative Committee (JNCC) to
engagement. secure a pay deal,

¢ Senior leader visibility and s More flexible working practices going forwards,
accessibility. ¢ A team of 28 Mental Health First Aiders across the

*  Structured development and business to support employee.
appraisal programme.

*  Ongoing programme of internal
communications, and regular
one-to-one meetings for
emplovee and line manager.

Regulators *  Regular meetings with all our ¢« For SESW - maintaining our gearing aft a level that is
regulators including by our non- acceptable to Ofwat.
executive directors, ¢ Updating dividend payout and executive pay

*  Regulator attendance at Board policies.
meetings. ¢ Pledged to make £9m of efficiency savings between

* Responding to consuliations and 2020 and 2025,
information requests. +  Leading the industry’s research and innovation

= Participation in national programme to reduce leakage.
campaigns. = Participation in Ofwat’s innovation competitions,

*  Sharing our expertise and
perspective through industry-
wide forums,
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Stakeholder IHow we engage [lmpact of engagement

[group

Communities «  Targeted communications for o  More than £28k of community grants provided
charities and community through the Community Foundation for Surrey.
partners. * Extending our education programme to reach more

*  Membership of local business schools, young people, business and community
forums. groups.
*  Working with organisations that | « Moved people living in housing association
help vulnerable customers. properties onto direct billing so we can provide a
*  Supporting worthy local causes discount through our Water Support Scheme.
with volunteering time and
financial donations,
*  Our education programme.

Local Authorities | «  Meetings with council Chief *  Planned for a 50% increase in the number of people
Executives and directors. living in our area by 2080,

«  Supporting local economic ¢« Delaying some of our mains upgrading work tof
prosperity initiatives. minimise further disruption to local businesses.

*  Project-specific department
engagement such as highways.

*  Participation in local resilience
forums.

Environmental *  [nvolvement in our local «  Specific targets in our Business Plan to;

organisations catchment partnerships. s cause no pollution.

*  Regular meetings with * Increase biodiversity at our sites,
environmental groups. ¢  Reduce abstraction from two sources during low
#  [Independent Environmental flows.
Scrutiny Panel. ¢  Reduce our carbon emissions.
®  Involved in producing out Net ¢ Achieving prestigions Biodiversity Benchmark
Zero Carbon routemap. Awards tor several of our sites,
* We engage on a regular basis on
key environmental matters and
listen to priorities from outside of
our organisation.

Our supphiers * Dedicated relationships *  Productive and stable working relationships.
depending on the scope and ¢ Agile decision-making as a small company.
nature of the arrangement. *  Participation in joint industry award entries.

¢ Our procurement team and ¢  Provide testimonials in publicity campaigns and
supplier forums. support supplier promotional work.,

s Annual performance reviews
with critical suppliers.

=  Regular planning and
performance sessions,

K Kageyama
Director

Company Registration No: 08369318

27 November 2023

A%rg;d hy the Board of Threctors and signed on behalf of the Board,
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Directors’ Report

The directors present their directors’ report and the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2023,

Directors

The directors of the company who were in office during the vear and up to the date of signing the financial
statements were:

K Oida

K Kagevama

T Tkuta {appointed | April 2022}

Y Kurisu (appointed 1 April 2023)

K Takiguchi (appointed 1 April 2022 and resigned 31 March 2023)
M Kobayashi (resigned 1 April 2022)

E Matsnaki (resigned 1 April 2022)

Results and dividends

The results for the year are set out on page 19.

Ordinary dividends were paid amounting to £nil during the vear (2022: £3.5m). The directors do not recommend
a payment of further dividend.

Service contracts

All current executive directors have service contracts and notice periods.

Contracts of significance

There were no contracts of significance (including provision of services) existing in the year between the Group
and controlling shareholders, or to which the Group is a party and in which directors of the Group are, or were,
materially interested.

Directors® indemnities

There are contractual entitlements in place for the directors of the Group to claim indemnification by the Group
in respect of certain liabilities, which might be incurred by them in the course of their duties as directors. These
arrangements, which constitute qualifying third party indemnity provisions, have been established in compliance
with the relevant provisions of the Companies Act 2006 and have been in force throughout the financial year and
up to the date of approval of these financial statements. They include provision for the Group to fund the costs
incurred by directors in defending certain claims against them in relation to their duties as directors of the Group.

The Group also maintains an appropriate level of directors” and officers® liability insurance.

Ownership of the company

Sumisho Osaka Gas Water UK Limited is 50% owned by Summit Water Limited (“SWL”), a company
incorporated at Vintners Place, 68 Upper Thames Street, London, EC4V 3BJ; and 50% by Osaka Gas UK Limited
{OGUK), a company incorporated at 1* Floor, Carrington House, 126 - 130 Regent Street, London, W1B 35E.
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Sumimit Water Limsted Osaka Gas UK Limited

50% l 50%

Sumisho Ouaka Gas Water UK

100%

Ennt Surrey Holding Limited .l. B0% - 100%

100% hon Reguiated Companies
SESW Holding Company Limited |,

100%

Sution and East Surrey Waler Pic

Group overview

The primary activities within the Group are o both supply water to domestic customers through Sutton and East
Surrey Water ple (SESW), a regulated public water supply Company and 1o act as a retailer within the water and
sewerage retail market for eligible non-household customers through Sutton and East Surrey Water Services
Limited (rrading as SES Business Water and SES Home Services). The other smaller subsidiaries include
Advanced Minerals Limited which sources and processes materials and minerals, The Calcite Factory BV a
subsidiary of Advanced Minerals Limited which performs similar activity in the Netherlands and Allmat a locally
based builders merchant in Kenley.

Business review and future prospects

The Group’s performance and results are set out in the Strategic report,

SESW s revenue increased to £67.4m (2022: £63.0m), Operating costs increased to £62.8m (2022; £56.6m) driven
by raw materials and consumables increased by 23% due to the increased supply chain pressure across the industry
and depreciation increased by 3% as the business continues to invest in its capital programme. As a consequence,
operating profit decreased to £4.3m (2022: £10.2m).

Within SESW, its future plans are set out in our business plan for 2020 to 2025, SESW continues to monitor
against that and work within our TOTEX targets across the 5-year AMP programme. Within our other commercial
entities, SESW plans to continue to grow its customer base, mereasing sales and being key players in cach
business’s respective markets.

SESWS's revenue increased to £58.7m (2022: £51.7m) but made a loss before tax of £4.8m (2022; £2.5m).
SESWS had net liabilities of £6.1m ({2022: £1.5m).

SESWS, the second most substantial entity in the Group, is currently aiming to expand its customer base in the
retail market. On 9 February 2023, SES Home Services within SESWS established a contractual arrangement
with HomeServe Membership Ltd (HomeServe), which took effect on 1 April 2023, to sell its renewal rights to
an existing Home Emergency insurance policy book to HomeServe for total cash consideration up to £900,000
{comprised ol a lixed portion of £500k and a variable portion ol £400k based on the number of policy successfully
migrated), and to launch an affinity partnership between SES Home Services and HomeServe,

SES Home Service's revenue decreased to £3.0m (2022: £4.3m) and SES Business Water's revenue increased to
£35.6m (2022: £47.3m) for the year ended 31 March 2023,
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The rise in revenue can be atiributed 1o heightened consumption as the retail sectors make a recovery from the
impacts of Covid-19 pandemic. In order to accommodate the heightened demands of customers resulting {rom
increased consumption, operational costs had to be raised. Additionally, interest costs saw an increase as result
of servicing elevated borrowing necessities stemming from the Covid-19 situation.

Supplier Payment Policy

Settlement terms are agreed with suppliers as part of the contract terms and it is the Group’s policy to pay in
accordance with these terms. Other creditors are paid in accordance with invoice terms. Within SESW, the largest
company within the Group, creditor days in the year has increased to approximately 36 days (2022: 17 days) as a
result of a review of supplier payment terms in current year.

Research and Development

While the Group does not have a specific research and development function, SESW develops and deploys award-
winning innovative solutions and contributed significantly to the national water industry innovation agenda.
SESW is applying the learning it has gained regarding the Internet of Things and Artificial Intelligence into its
above ground asset solution based on its smart water network expertise. SESW is participating in six Ofwat
innovation funded projects run by other water companies, and it has successfully secured its own innovation
funding from Ofwat to develop a universal access point for water. SESW was awarded the Innovation Award at
the Utility Week Awards for its smart network and has been shortlisted for the Asset Management Initiative of
the year Award at this yvear’s Water Industry Awards.

Disabled Persons

As part of the Group's principle of equal opportunities in employment, full and fair consideration is provided to
all applications for employment that disabled people make to the Group. The Group’s consideration of such equal
opportunity is also provided to the employment, training, development and promotion of disabled people within
the business, and any personnel who become disabled during employment.

Employees

The Group's employees are fundamental to the success of the business, and our achievements to date are a result
of their hard work and determination. We are confident that their ongoing commitment will ensure we are able to
meet future challenges. We aim to be a responsible employer for whom people choose to work, and to ensure that
our employees are well trained, competent and motivated, while being appropriately rewarded for their efforts,
We recognise that the health and safety of everyone who works for us or is affected by our activities is critical to
the success of our business. The executive directors have significant daily interactions with the workforce of cach
company within the Group. Non-executive directors also have regular engagement via visits to site and regular
presentations at our Board meetings from members of the workforce, Regular communications are made within
each of the Companies within the Group via the directors or Group functions on key matters, such as HR, Finance
and IT.

Events after Reporting Period

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the management has evaluated events through 27 November 2023, which is
the date the consolidated [inancial statements were available to be 1ssued.

On 30 June 2023, The Calcite Factory B.V."s factory in the Netherlands ceased operation, where assels assessed
as likely to have value were shipped o Advanced Minerals Limited in the UK. The closure of the factory will not
have significant impact to the Group’s future financial performance due to its low level of business activity and
profit contribution to the Group in prior years.

On 12 July 2023 and 11 August 2023 ESH received the first and second instalment of committed equity injection
from SOGWUK with £2 million and £5 million equity then being injected to Sutton and East Surrey Water ple
via SESW Holding Company Limited respectively.

On 25 August 2023, the company was allotted 4,000,000 ordinary shares with a nominal value of £0.50 each.
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During the current vear, SOGWUK supported SESWS, the water retail division of the Group with shareholder’s
loans of £4m and provided a shareholder’s loan of £7m to SESW to meet its operational needs and financial
covenants at the year-end date, of which the £7m loan has been fully repaid subsequent to the vear end. In July
2023 and October 2023, a further £1.5m and £1.3m of shareholder’s loans was provided to SESW's financial
needs,

The Shareholders of the Company have engaged financial advisors to undertake a strategic review of the
SOGWUK Group’s business, including SESW and as of October 2023 they are in advanced negotiations with a
potential buyer of the sale of the company. The potential sale is not vet finalised and remains conditional on final
agreement and approvals, therefore it remains uncertain at the date of signing these accounts if the proposed sale
will proceed.

Future Developments

Particulars of future developments and financial risks are disclosed in the Strategic Report.

Charitable and Political Donations

During the year, the Group made charitable donations amounting to £32k (2022: £34k). This included a £31k
donation to the Community Foundation for Surrey. There were no political donations in the vear (2022: £nil).

Greenhouse Gas Emissions

SESW continues to take action to reduce its carbon footprint resulting from its operational activities and have
again met its performance commitment, with emissions of 41 kgCO2e/MI, compared with 47 kgCO2e/MI last
vear, the first result under this methodology that was not unduly influenced by suppressed operational activity
during the Covid-19 pandemic.

Greenhouse gas emissions are calculated using the UK Water Indusiry Research Carbon Accounting Workbook
which is updated annually to reflect changes to emission factors and carbon reporting guidance from the UK
Government.

Met operational greenhouse gas emissions in 2022/23 were 2,289 tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent (tC0:e)
{2021/22: 2,800 tC0x¢e), a 18% decrease on the previous year. This equates to operational emissions of 37 kgCOse
per million litres of treated water (2021/22: 46 kgCO:ze). Using 2021/22 emissions factors, operational emissions
for 2022/23 would be equivalent to 45 kgCOse per million litres of treated water,

Operational greenhouse gas emissions for 2022/23 for SESW include (2021/22 emissions are in brackets):

e Gas consumption: 947,045 kWh and 173 1COze (1,244,341 k'Wh and 228 1COse)
o  Consumption of travel fuels: 1,679,218 kWh and 424 tCOqe (4,603,677 KWh and 427 tCOxe)

¢  Purchase of electricity by the company for its own use, including for transport: 54,332,386 k'Wh and 0
1C0:2e (532,500,268kWh and 0 tCOze).

Mote: all conversions are using the relevant greenhouse gas reporting figures on a net calorific value basis. The
data for consumption of transport [uels covers vehicles for which SESW is responsible for the purchase of fuel. It
does not include business miles in company cars which are refunded through expenses. This is because the
information is not practical to obtain and SESW is exploring options to digitise the expenses process to make this
information more accessible.

SESW has continued the decarbonisation of its vehicle fleet, with now over 30% of its cars and light goods
vehicles fleet being pure electric. Alongside this, work to remove the burning of fossil fuels has been mixed over
the last year: SESW has further reduced its dependency on natural gas for space heating and have proven the
ability of its standby generator sets to run on pure biofuel. However, supply difficulties and escalating costs owing
to the war in Ukraine have prevented a full switch-over to biofuel at this time.
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In 2022/23 SESW continued to purchase 100% Renewable Energy Guarantee of Origin backed electricity for all
sites. SESW has 42 charging points across 100% of its operational treatment works and head office. SESW has
solar panels installed at five treatment works and at its Redhill head office. In 2022/23 these generated 336,548
kWh (2022: 250,024 kWh).

This year there was a reduction in natural gas usage at its treatment works following investment in insulation
improvements, which are completed in 2022/23, A programme to remove fossil fuel boilers also commenced
during the reporting period. Fuel oil use fell because SESW did not take part in Triad avoidance, so its generators
were not run as regularly

Audit Committee

In financial year 22/23 ESH continued to hold audit committee meetings alongside the SESW audit committee
meetings. These were chaired by Murray Legg who also chaired the SESW audit committee. The main focus of
the committee has been supporting and challenging management on its financial resilience and liquidity, ensuring
that appropriately resilient plans are in place. These are in addition to the core activities of the committee ensuring
compliance with statutory requirements, review of key accounting judgements as well as working alongside PwC,
the Group’s auditors.

Going Concern

The Group’s activities, together with the factors that are likely to affect its future development, performance and
position, are set out in the Strategic Report. The finaneial position of the Group is set out on page 20. Note 21 of
the financial statements sets out the Group’s position in relation to risks associated with financial instruments,
credit and interest rates and describes the Group’s risk mitigation measures. The going concern basis has been
adopted for preparing the linancial statements.

The directors have considered the financial position of the Group and concluded that it will be able to meet its
liahilities as they fall due for the foreseeable future, For these purposes, the foreseeable future is taken to mean a
period of at least 12 months from the date of approval of these financial statements (the Going Concern Period).
The Directors’ conclusions on the going concern basis reflect the commitment from the Company’s controlling
sharcholders (in the form of written letters of support up to December 2024) on making available any necessary
funding support to the Group for meeting its liquidity needs and financial covenant requirements under ESH and
SESW. The funding commitment from the Company s controlling shareholders includes £22 million in aggregate
in the form of equity injections to the Company, then to ESH, and then to SESW over the next 12 months. Such
equity injections allow the Company to further support SESW to deliver its capital programme of investment for
the next 12 months, these commitments are only valid to the extent the Company remains wholly owned by its
current shareholders.

The directors have assessed —and are satisfied with — the shareholders” ability to make such funds available in the
form of equity injections and the first and second instalment and share injection of these amounts made to ESH
of £2m and £5m has been received. No repayments of SESW's long-dated bond are due within the next 12 months.
The directors have also considered plausible downside scenarios having regard to the ongoing high inflationary
environment, forecast liquidity of each of the group entities, refinancing of SESWs £50m (of the aggregate £75m)
revolving eredit facility (RCF) due July 2024 and the long-term bond covenants. If required the Group has
a number of mitigating actions to deal with liquidity issues, including future RCF and debt financing, re-scoping
and deferral of capital projects and written commitments from shareholders through the aforementioned letters of
support to address such downside scenarios.

However, as noted in these financial statements the Sharcholders of the company are in advanced negotiations
with a potential buyer for the sale of the company, which may complete within the next 12 months, The
Company's Directors do not have access to financing arrangements of the potential purchaser going forward or
visibility of strategic plans or forecasts under any new ownership and, therefore the Directors are unable 1o
incorporate these plans in their going concern assessment. As such, this ereates a material uncertainty that may
cast significant doubt on the Company and Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. The Financial
statements do not contain the adjustments that would arise if the company were unable to continue as a going
COMNCErt.
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SESW — the Appointee — is the only entity within the regulatory ring-fence required by Appointee’s licence.
The directors have considered the financing of other entities outside of the regulatory ring-fence and within the
wider ESH Group, and are not aware of any entity’s external debt that would result in an issue with respect to
SESW's going concern status. In accordance with SESW's licence none of the debt outside the ring-fence is
cuaranteed by SESW and there is no cross-default in SESW’s debi to the debi ouiside the ring-fence. In the event
that the ongoing strategic review results in the sale of the Company within the Going Concern Period, the directors
expect that as part of the process of transferring SESW’s water supply licence a new owner would be required to
confirm appropriate ongoing funding arrangements.

Within ESH the £36m Private Placement includes a change of control clause in the Notes Purchase Agreement
which assumes the debt would be repaid should a new shareholder purchase the group. The HSBC facility within
SESWS is uncommitted and it is assumed that this is repayable on change of ownership as it is guaranteed by the
SOGWUK. All other debts are assumed to remain in the ESH Group subject to the outcome of the strategic
review.

During the current vear, SOGWUK supported SESWS, the water retail division of the Group with shareholder’s
loans of £4m and provided a shareholder’s loan of £7m to SESW to meet its operational needs and financial
covenants at the vear-end date, of which the £7m loan has now been fully repaid. Subsequent to the year end
SOGWUK further supported SESWS with a shareholders loans totaling £2.8m.

Statement of Disclosure to the Independent Auditors

Each director in office at the date of approval of this annual report confirms thai:

+ 5o far as the director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the company's auditors are
unaware, and

+ the director has taken all the steps that he / she ought to have taken as a director in order to make himself /
hersell aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the company's auditors are aware of
that information.

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of section 418 of the
Companies Act 20006,

Independent Auditors

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (PwC) has indicated its willingness to continue in office,

Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of the financial statements and annual report

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulation,

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the
directors have prepared the group and the company financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101 “Reduced
Disclosure Framework™, and applicable law).

Under company law, directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the group and company and of the profit or loss of the group for that
period. In preparing the financial statements, the directors are required to:

e select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

e state whether applicable UK-adopted international accounting standards have been followed for the
group financial statements and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101 have been
followed for the company financial statements, subject to any material departures disclosed and
explained in the financial statements;
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e make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and

«  prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
eroup and company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for safeguarding the assets of the group and company and hence for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The directors are also responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the group’s and company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position
of the group and company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies
Act 2006,

Directors® confirmations

In the case of each director in office at the date the Directors™ Report is approved:

* so far as the director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the group’s and company’s
auditors are unaware; and

* they have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a director in order to make themselves aware
of any relevant audit information and to establish that the group’s and company’s auditors are aware of
that information.

Apprgeeed by the Board ol Directors and signed on behalf of the Board .

m&&. (v 4 %/

K Kageyama Vintners” Place, 68 Upper Thames Street
Director London
Company Registration No: 08369318 EC4V 3R]
27 November 2023 United Kingdom



Independent auditors’ report to the
members of Sumisho Osaka Gas Water
UK Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

In our opinion:

»  Sumisho Osaka Gas Water UK Limited’s group financial staterments and company financial statements (the “financial
staternents”) give a true and fair view of the state of the group's and of the company's affairs as at 31 March 2023 and
of the group’s loss and the group's cash flows for the year then ended;

« the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK-adopted international accounting
standards as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 20086,

e the company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 101 "Reduced Disclosure
Framewark”, and applicable law);, and

« the financial staternents have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006,

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual Report and Financial Statements (the "Annual
Report’), which comprise: Consolidated Statement of Financial Position and Company Balance Shest as at
31 March 2023; Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income, Consolidated and Company
Staterments of Changes in Equity and Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the yvear then ended; and the notes to the
financial statements, which include a description of the significant accounting policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) ("ISAs (UK)") and applicable law.
Our responsibilities under 15As (UK) are further described in the Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial staternents in the UK, which includes the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

Material uncertainty related to going concern

In forming our opinion on the financial statements, which is not modified, we have considered the adequacy of the
disclosure made in Mote 1.2 and Mote 28 concemning the Group's and the Company's ability to confinue as a going concerm.
Whilst the Company’s ultimate shareholders have confirmed that they will continue to provide financial support for a
minimum period of at least 12 months following approval of these financial statements, this is only valid to the extent the
Company remains wholly owned by its current shareholders, The Shareholders of the Company are in advanced
negotiations with a potential buyer for the sale of the Company, which may complete within the next 12 months. The
Company’s directors do not have access to financing arrangements of the potential purchaser going forward or visibility
of strategic plans or forecasts under any new ownership and therefore the directors are unable to incorporate these plans
in their going concern assessment, These conditions, along with the other matters explained in those notes to the financial
staternents, indicate the existence of a matenial uncertainty which may cast significant doubt about the group’s and the
company's ability to continue as a going concern. The financial statements do not include the adjustments that would
result if the group and the company were unable to continue as a going concem.



In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors” use of the going concern basis of accounting
in the preparation of the financial statements is appropnate.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant
sections of this report,

Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and our
auditors' report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements
does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent
otherwise explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent material inconsistency or material
misstatemeant, we are required to perform procedures to conclude whether there is a material misstatement of the financial
statements or a material misstaterment of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report based on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Strategic report and Directors' Report, we also considered whether the disclosures required by the UK
Companies Act 2006 have been included,

Based on our work undertaken in the course of the audit, the Companies Act 2006 requires us also to report certain
opinions and matters as described below.

Strategic report and Directors' Report
In our opinicn, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Strategic report and

Directors' Report for the year ended 31 March 2023 is consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared in
accordance with applicable legal requirements.

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and company and their environment obtained in the course of
the audit, we did not identify any material misstatements in the Strategic report and Directors” Report.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of directors' responsibilities in respect of the financial statements and annual
report, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable
framewaork and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. The directors are also responsible for such internal
control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group's and the company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the group or the company or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our ohjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or emor, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstaternent when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line
with our responsibilities, outlined above, o detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The
extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud, is detailed below.



Based on our understanding of the group and industry, we identified that the principal risks of non-compliance with laws
and regulations related to breaches of license conditions under the Water Industry Act 1991, and UK Corporation Tax
legislation, and we considered the extant to which non-compliance might have a material effect on the financial statements.
We also considered those laws and regulations that have a direct impact on the financial statements such as the
Companies Act 2006, We evaluated management’s incentives and opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the
financial statements (including the risk of override of contrals), and determined that the principal risks were related to
posting inappropriate journal entries and management bias in accounting esfimates. Audit proceduras performed by the
engagement team included:

& [Enguiries of Management, including consideration of known or suspected instances of non-compliance with laws and
regulations and fraud;

& [Evaluation of Management's control to prevent and detect irregularities;
« Reviewing minutes of meetings of those charged with governance

« |dentifying and testing joumal entries, in particular: any journal entries with unusual journal combinations of account
codes where credits have gone to revenue, journals posted by certain individuals (for example senior management of
directors who we wouldn't expect to be posting journals); or journals with certain key unusual words; and

« Challenging assumptions and judgements made by Management in their significant accounting estimates and
judgements.

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above. We are less likely to become aware of instances
of non-compliance with laws and regulations that are not closely related to events and transactions reflected in the
financial statements. Also, the risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the nsk of not
detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional
misrepresentations, or through collusion.

A further description of our responsibilties for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC's website at:
www.fro.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditors’ report,

Use of this report

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company's members as a body in accordance
with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept
or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other parson to whom this report is shown or into whose hands
it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

Other required reporting

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

« we have not obtained all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

* adequate accounting records have not been kept by the company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

« cerlain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
» the company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have no exceptions to report ansing from this responsibility.

%""‘H—-’ ﬂf:"‘-’(«_

Richard Franch (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

27 Movember 2023



Sumisho Osaka Gas Water UK Limited

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive
Income
for the year ended 31 March

2023 2022
Mote £000 £000
Revenue 2 125244 114,026
Operating cost 3 (125,726) (109,941)
Other operating income 4 1,108 3,359
Met impairment losses on
financial and contract assels {2,376) 449
Operating (loss)/profit (1,750 7.893
Finance income 7 ®9] 382
Finance expenses 7 (29.970) (15,186)
Loss before tax (30,829) (6.911)
Income tax credit/{expenses) b 6,455 (11,955)
Loss for the year (24,374) {18,866)
Other comprehensive (expense) [ income:
Actuarial (losses) / gains on defined benefit pension
scheme 19 (17,248) 5,658
Movement on deferred tax relating to pension asset 13 4,312 {983)
Total other comprehensive (expense) / income for the yvear (12,936) 4,675
Total comprehensive loss for the year (37.310) (14,191)
Total comprehensive loss attributable to:
Equily holders ol the parent (37.343) (14,242)
Mon-controlling interest 33 51
(37.310) (14,191)
Loss for the year attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent (24,407) (18,917)
Mon-controlling interest 33 51
(24,374) {18,50606)

The notes on pages 24 to 63 form part of the financial statements.



Sumisho Osaka Gas Water UK Limited

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March

2023 2022
Mote £000 £000
MNon-current assets
Intangible assets 10 130,833 127,955
Property, plant and equipment 9 372769 3nl, 010
Investment properties 11 2,643 2,670
Pension scheme asset 19 9211 26,265
515,456 518,000
Current assets
Inventories 14 1,453 1,382
Trade and other receivables 15 51,887 48,878
Cash and cash equivalents 16 44,266 30814
97 606 81,074
Total assets 613,062 599,074
Current liabilities
Interest-bearing loans and horrowings 17 15,000 -
Trade and other pavables 18 70,654 69,807
#5654 69 807
MNon-current liabilities
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 17 324,332 287,725
Lease habilities 22 GR0 Thh
Unfunded pension obligation 149 802 973
Deferred tax liahilities 13 44,118 54,980
Dilapidation provisions 464 464
370,396 Fed S0E
Total liabilities 456,050 414,715
Net assets 157,012 184,359
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent
Share capital 20 174,550 164,550
Translation reserve (1) (1)
{Accumulated losses)/Retained earnings (18.065) 19,278
156,484 183,827
Non-controlling interest 528 532
Total equity 157,012 184,359

The notes on pages 24 to 63 form part of the financial statements.

Director
Company Registration No: 08369318
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Sumisho Osaka Gas Water UK Limited

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 31 March

2023 2022
MNote £000 £000
Cash flow from operating activities
i Loss)/profit for the year (24,374) {18,866)
Adjustments for
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 9 13,108 12,440
Amortisation of intangible lixed assets 1] 1,112 936
Depreciation of Investment properties 11 27 27
Impairment of intangible assets 141 -
Proceeds from Insurance claims - {1.970)
Amortisation of Bond costs 17 619 ERE
Met interest receivable and similar income 7 (891} (382)
Met interest payvable and similar charges 7 29,351 14,742
Profit on sale of assets on disposal of PPE (91 {1.283)
Provision Movements - 20
Impairment losses on financial
and contract assets, net 2,376 -
Taxation 8 (6.455) 11.955
14,923 18,063
Inerease in trade and other debtors (6,593) {4,202)
{Increase)/Decrease in stocks 14 (71 [
Increase in trade and other creditors 2,895 T.051
Decrease in provisions and employee benefits {362) (163)
i4,131) 2,690
Cash generated from operations 10,792 20,753
Interest paid (9.171) (10,111}
Income tax received/(paid) 1,035 i 100)
Net cash generated from operating activities 2.656 10,542
Cash flows from investing operating activities
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets 121 1.562
Proceeds from disposal of intangibles - 78
Proceeds from Insurance claims - 1,970
Interest received 7 a9 382
Acquisition of tangible fixed assets 9 (25,152) (24,797)
Acquisition of intangible fixed assets 1 4.228) (7,593)
Net cash used in investing activities (28,368) {28,398)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from loans 17 20,000 14,825
Payment of obligation under finance leases 22 - 54
Repayment of loans (4,000 -
Dividends paid to minority interest (37 i(167)
Proceeds from issue of shares 10,000 -
Principal elements of lease payments (362) -
Dividends paid - (3,500)
Net cash generated from financing activities 25,601 11,242
Met decrease in cash and cash equivalents (111} (6.614)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the vear 21.542 28.156
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the vear 16 21,431 21,542




Sumisho Osaka Gas Water UK Limited

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (continued)
for the year ended 31 March

Relating to:
2023 2022
£000 £000
Cash and cash equivalents 44,266 30514
Owerdraft (included in creditors less than one year) 18 (7.835) (9,272}
Short-term overdraft 17 ((15.000) -
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 21,431 21,542

The notes on pages 24 to 63 form part of the financial statements.
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Sumisho Osaka Gas Water UK Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

1
11

1.2

1.3

Accounting policies
Basis af accounting

Sumisho Osaka Gas Water UK Limited (the “Company™) is a company incorporated and domiciled in UKL
The Company is a private company limited by shares. The Company operates as a holding company for
cerlain European subsidiaries of Sumitomo Corporation Japan and Osaka Gas Co. Lid. The address of the
registered office is Vintners' Place, 68 Upper Thames Street, London, EC4V 3B

The Group financial statements consolidate those results of the Company and its subsidiaries (together
referred to as the “Group™).

The Group financial statements have been prepared and approved by the directors in accordance with K-
adopted International Accounting Standards and with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, The
Company has elected to prepare its parent company financial statements in accordance with FRS 101 these
are presented on pages 64 - 73,

The accounting policies set out below have, unless otherwise stated, been applied consistently to all periods
presented in these Group financial statements,

Judgements made by the directors, in the application of these accounting policies that have significant effect
on the financial statements and estimates with a significant risk of material adjustment in the next year are
discussed in note 25,

The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis unless otherwise stated in these notes to the
financial statements.

The financial statements are prepared in Pound Sterling, which is the functional currency of the group,
Monetary amounts in these financial statements are rounded to the nearest £000, unless otherwise stated.

Adopred accounting standards not yet applied

There are no amendments to accounting standards that are effective for the vear ended 31 March 2023 that
have a material impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Groing concern

The going concern basis has been adopted for preparing the financial statements. The directors have
considered the financial position of the Group and have concluded that they will meet their liabilities as they
fall due for the foreseeable future. On 12 July 2023, the Company received a Letter of Support from
Sumitomo Corporation and Osaka Gas Co. Lid, the uliimate parent undertakings for at least 12 months from
the date of signing these financial statements. This obligates Sumitomo Corporation and Osaka Gas Co. Lid
to provide the Company financial support as necessary such that the Group is able 1o operate as a going
concern and is only valid to the extent the Company remains wholly owned by its current shareholders. A
back to back Letter of Support on the same terms has been provided by the Company to ESH, and then by
ESH to select operating companies, SESWS, Allmat and Cheam.

For these purposes the foreseeable future is taken to mean a period of at least 12 months from the date of
approval of the financial statements.

Howewver, as noted in the Strategic Report the Shareholders of the company are in advanced negotiations with
a potential buyer for the sale of the company, which may complete within the next 12 months. The Company’s
Directors do not have access to financing arrangements of the potential purchaser going forward or visibility
of strategic plans or forecasts under any new ownership and therefore the directors are unable to incorporate
these plans in their going concern assessment. As such, this creates a material uncertainty that may cast
significant doubt on the Company and Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. The financial
statements do not contain the adjustment that would arise if the Company were unable to continue as a going
CONMCErn.
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Sumisho Osaka Gas Water UK Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

1.4

1.5

L6

Accounting policies (continued)
Business combinations

All business combinations are accounted for by applying the acquisition method. Business combinations are
accounted for using the acquisition method as at the acquisition date, which is the date on which control is
transferred to the Group.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated group financial statements consist of the financial statements of the parent company
together with all entities controlled by the parent company (its subsidiaries) and the group’s share of its
interests in joint ventures and associates.

All financial statements are made up to 31 March 2023, Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring the accounting policies used into line with those used by other
members of the group.

All intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated on consolidation. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred.

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it 15 exposed to, or has
rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. In assessing control, the Group takes into consideration potential voting
rights that are currently exercisable. The acquisition date is the date on which conirol is transferred to the
acquirer. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included i the consolidated financial statements from
the date that control commences until the date that control ceases. Losses applicable to the non-controlling
interests in a subsidiary are allocated to the non-controlling interests even if doing so causes the non-
controlling interests to have a deficit balance.

Classification of financial instruments issued by the Group

Financial instruments issued by the Group are treated as equity only to the extent that they meet the following
two conditions:

a) they include no contractual obligations upon the Group to deliver cash or other financial assets or to
exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another party under conditions that are potentially
unfavourable to the Group: and

b} where the instrument will or may be settled in the Company’s own equity instruments, it is either a non-
derivative that includes no obligation to deliver a variable number of the company’s own equity
instruments or is a derivative that will be settled by the company s exchanging a fixed amount of cash
or other financial assets for a fixed number of its own equity instruments.

To the extent that this definition is not met, the proceeds of issue are classified as a financial liability. Where
the instrument so classified takes the legal form of the Company’s own shares, the amounts presented in these
financial statements for called up share capital and share premium account exclude amounts in relation to
those shares,
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Sumisho Osaka Gas Water UK Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

1.7

1.8

Accounting policies (continued)
Non-derivative financial instrumenis

Non-derivative financial instruments comprise investments in equity and debt securities, trade and other
receivables, cash and cash equivalents, loans and borrowings, and trade and other payables.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value. Subsequent to mnitial recognition they are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment losses.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition they are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Cash and cash eguivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term liquid
imvestments with original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown
within borrowings in current liabilities.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less atiributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost using the effective
mterest method, less any impairment losses.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses,

Property. plant and equipment are stated at deemed cost less aceumulated depreciation and aceumulated
impairment losses. The cost includes the original purchase price of the asset and costs atiributable to bringing
the asset to its working condition for its intended use. The cost of assets includes directly attributable labour
and overhead costs which are incremental to the Company. The Company considers a substantial period of
time for the construction of an asset in the water industry to be five years.

Property, plant and equipment are capitalised and depreciated when they are considered to be operationally
complete, which means that the asset is in the condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for
as separate items of tangible fixed assets.

Infrastruciure assets — mains and fresh water reservoirs

Infrastructure assets comprise a network of systems relating to water distribution.

Mains — repairs, maintenance and replacements

The mains network is considered to consist of multiple assets. It consists of different arcas and is capable of
being separated and divided up. [AS 16 requires all repairs and maintenance to be charged to the profit and
loss account. Repairs and maintenance include the day to day servicing of an item. The costs of day-to-day
servicing are primarily the costs of labour and consumables and may include the cost of small parts. The
mending of a burst main is considered to be a repair as long as the subsequent work extends to the replacement
of no more than one length of pipe. The relining of a main is considered to be maintenance which is the work
needed to keep a main in good condition.

LAS 16 requires replacements to be capitalised. When more than one length of pipe is laid it 15 considered a
replacement, and not a repair, and it is therefore capitalised.
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Sumisho Osaka Gas Water UK Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

1.8

L9

Accounting policies (continued)
Property, plant and eguipment (continued)
Perished mains replaced during the period are disposed of from the fixed asset records.

Depreciation 15 charged to the profit and loss account on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives
of each part of an item of property, plant and equipment. Freehold land is not depreciated. Depreciation
methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each balance sheet date. The estimated useful lives
are as follows:

Y eurs
Collection reservoirs 140 - 150
Water mains 100
Buildings, boreholes and service reservoirs 5-100
Mutor vehicles and sundry plant 3 - 50
Plant and machinery 3= 100

Freehold land and assets in the course of construction are not depreciated.

The gain or loss arising on the disposal of an asset is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds
and the carrying value of the asset, and 15 recognised in the income statement.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each balance sheet date.
Intangible assets and goodwill

Intangible assets acquired separately from a business are recognised at cost and are subsequently measured
at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Croodwill

Goodwill is stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. It is not amortised but is tested annually for
impairment.

Research and development
Expenditure on research activities is recognised in the profit and loss account as an expense as incurred.

Expenditure on development activities is capitalised if the product or process 1s technically and commercially
feasible and the Company intends and has the technical ability and sufficient resources to complete
development, future economic benefits are probable and if the Company can measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during its development. Development activities involve a plan or design
for the production of new or substantially improved products or processes. The expenditure capitalised
includes the cost of materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads and capitalised
borrowing costs. Other development expenditure is recognised in the profit and loss account as an expense
as incurred.

Amortisation

Amortisation is charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
intangible assets unless such lives are indefinite. Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life and goodwill
are systematically tested for impairment at each balance sheet date. Other intangible assets are amortised
{rom the date they are available for use. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Years

Software 3-10
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Notes to the Financial Statements

L.1o

112

Accounting policies (continued)

Investment Properties

Investment properties, which are held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation, are initially recognised
at cost. Subsequently they are measured at cost less any depreciation at each reporting end date, The fair
value was used as deemed cost on transition to IFRS in 2014, The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Y ears

Investment Properties 46-221

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of beads in Advanced Minerals
Limited is based on the weighted average cost method, otherwise cost is based on the firsi-in first-out
principle and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the stocks and other costs in bringing them to their
existing location and condition.

Impairment excluding inventories and deferred tax assets
Financial assets {including receivables)

A financial asset not carried at fair value through profit or loss is assessed at each reporting date to determine
whether there is objective evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is impaired if objective evidence
mdicates that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, and that the loss event had a
negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset that can be estimated reliably.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated as the difference
between its carrving amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s
original effective interest rate. For financial instruments measured at cost less impairment, impairment is
caleulated as the difference between its carrying amount and the best estimate of the amount that the Company
would receive for the asset if it were to be sold at the reporting date. Interest on the impaired asset continues
to be recognised through the unwinding of the discount. When a subsequent event causes the amount of
impairment loss to decrease, the decrease in impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.

Bad debt write-aff policy

Outstanding balances on customers” accounts are normally written-oftf as bad debis only when the customer
can either no longer be located, all means of recovery have been exhausted or the cost of recovery is
considered to be disproportionate to the value of the debt.

Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets are
reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. IT any such
indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. For goodwill, and intangible assets that
have indefinite useful lives or that are not yet available for use, the recoverable amount is estimated each year
at the same time.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced 1o its recoverable amount. An impairment

loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the impairment loss 15 treated as a revaluation decrease.

28



Sumisho Osaka Gas Water UK Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

112

1.13

L4

Accounting policies (continued)
Impairment excluding inventories and deferved tax assets (continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset {or cash-generating unit)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrving amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or cash-generating umit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss 15 recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

Employee benefits

The Group accounts for pensions and other post-employment benefits under IAS 19(R). The Group operates
both defined benefit and defined contribution pension schemes. Defined benefits are provided using both
funded and unfunded pension plans.

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which SESW pays fixed contributions into a separate
entity. SESW has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold
sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods.
A defined benefit plan is a pension plan that is not a defined contribution plan.

Retirement benefits

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays contributions to publicly or privately administered pension
insurance plan on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no further payment ohligations
once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when
they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction
in the future payments is available.

Typically, defined benefit plans deline an amount of pension benefit that an emplovee will receive on
retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors, such as age, vears of service and compensation.

The liability recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit pension plans is the present value
of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period, less the fair value of plan assets. The
defined benefit obligation 1s calculated annually by independent actuaries on a triennial basis, and updated to
each yvear end by an independent qualified actuary using the Projected Unit Credit actuarial valuation method.
The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash
outflows using interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in which
the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the related pension
obligation. In countries where there is no deep market in such bonds, the market rates on government bonds
are used,

Remeasurement gains and losses arsing from expernience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions
are charged or credited to equity in other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise. The amount
charged or credited 1o finance costs is a net interest amount calculated by applying the liability discount rate
to the net defined benefit liability or asset. Past service costs are recognised immediately in the profit and
loss account.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the group has a legal or constructive present obligation as a result of a past
event and it is probable that the group will be required to settle that obligation, and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision 1s the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the reporting end date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.
Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows.
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Li6

Accounting policies (continued)
1.15 Provisions (continued)

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a
third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if' it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received
and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably,

A provision for environmental restoration, restructuring costs and legal claims would be recognised where:

*  The Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;

+« [t is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation;

*  The amount has been reliably estimated.

Prowisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

If there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelithood
of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations is small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest
EXpinse.,

The Group offers warranties for certain of its products and services in general. Management estimates the
related provision for future warranty claims based on historical warranty claim information, as well as recent
trends that might suggest that past cost information may differ from future claims. The assumptions used in
this estimate have been consistently applied in current and prior years, Factors that could impact the estimated
claim information include the success of the Group’s productivity and guality initiatives, as well as parts and
labour costs, As at 31 March 2023, the Group had not made any warranty provisions as the costs involved is
not considered to be material,

Revenue

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, and represents amounts
receivable for goods or services supplied, stated net of discounts, returns and value added 1axes. The Group
recognises revenue when performance obligations have been satisfied. The Group's activities are described
in detail below.

The core principles of IFRS 15 *Revenue from Contracts with Customers’ are:

Identify the contract with a customer.

Identify the performance obligations in the coniract.

Determine the transaction price.

Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract.
Recognise revenue when the entity satisfies a performance obligation.

L oo e g e

Revenue is recognised when, or as, the performance obligations to the customer are satisfied. Consideration
received from customers in advance of the performance obligation being met and hence revenue being
recognised is deferred and recorded as a contract liability.

If the Group considers that the criteria for revenue recognition is not met for a transaction because the
recoverability of the consideration receivable is not reasonably assured, then revenue is not recognised until
such time that recoverability is reasonably assured (note 25).
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L.I6

Accounting policies (continued)
Revenue (continned)

Where customers pay in advance for a service provided this is treated as a contract liability and recorded as
a liability. All water services would be supplied within one year of that payment, so this is ireated as a current
liability. If the customer is paying in advance for developer services, then those services are deliverable upon
customer demand so these payments in advance are also treated as a current liability. The only significant
contract liahility relates to the annual water bill raised in advance for unmeasured customers. This is for all
water to be delivered over the following 12 months.

Where the Group provides services in advance of an invoice being raised this is recorded as a contract asset,
Invoices will be raised within 12 months of delivery of the service, so it is classified as a current asset, The
only significant contract asset relates to water delivered in advance of invoicing for measured water customers
whao are billed six-monthly in arrears (note 25),

The Group has applied this framework to its income streams as follows:
I. Water services — household and wholesale revenue

The Group has an obligation as an appointed Water Undertaker to provide water services to customers within
its statutory supply area, which is considered to constitute a contractual arrangement with those customers
(household customers). For non-household supply, the Group’s customer is the relevant retailer. In this case
there is a contractual arrangement with the retailer through the competitive markel arrangements run by
Market Operator Services Limited (MOSL).

The Group’s performance obligation is the continuous and ongoing supply of water services to the customers
across its entire network. This is considered to be one performance obligation and the performance of this
obligation is matched to our customers consuming water,

The transaction price is the amount of consideration that the Group expects to receive in return for providing
the water services, in this case being the amount which it has a right to receive from hilling customers for
appointed water services. The billing basis differs depending upon whether a household customer has a water
meter (measured supply) or not (unmeasured supply). In certain specific circumstances, usually when the
customer has requested a water meter, but we are physically unable to fit one to the customer’s property, a
customer may be placed on an assessed tariff (unmeasured supply). The process for revenue recognition for
customers on an assessed tarift 1s the same as that for unmeasured customers.

For unmeasured supply of water services the amount of consideration to which the Group has a right to
receive s based on the rateable value of the customer’s property as assessed by an independent rating officer.
Revenue is recognised in a straight line over the course of a financial year, best representing the Group’s
performance of its obligations throughout that year in the absence of definitive information regarding
individual unmeasured customer’s usage.

For measured supply of water services, the amount of consideration to which the Group is entitled is
determined by actual usage of water by customers. The usage is derived from meter readings taken by the
Group (or its contractors), which are read at least twice per year. Revenue includes an estimate of the water
consumed but unbilled at year end (note 25). Details of the charging schemes for household customers are
available on the Group’s website.

For the wholesale supply to retailers, the majority of end customers are metered with the billing information
passing between the Group and the relevant retailer through the competitive market processes controlled by
MOSL. Revenue includes an estimate of the water consumed by customers but not vet billed at the year end
(note 25).

Revenue is not recognised on contracts where the recoverability of revenue is not assured, The criteria used
by management is where a new customer has not paid their bills for a period of at least one year, and where
an existing customer has not paid their bills for a period of at least 3 years.
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L.I6

Accounting policies (continued)
Revenue (continned)

Late payment fees are typically associated with delaved settlement of financial obligations by customers.
Revenue on such fees is recognised only when there exists a high degree of probability that the anticipated
consideration will be received,

A refund liability (included in trade and other payables) and a right to the returned goods (included in other
current assets) are recognised for the products expected to be returned, Accumulated experience is used to
estimate such returns at the time of sale. As the number of products returned has been minimal in prior years,
it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the cumulative revenue recognised will not occur. The
Ciroup’s obligation to repair or replace faulty products under the standard warranty terms is recognised as a
provision (see note 1.15).

2. Empiy Properties — Household revenue

Empty unmeasured properties are not billed 1if the Group has been informed in writing that the supply 15 not
required and the Group is able to attend and turn off the supply. Empiy metered properties are hilled standing
tariffs only,

Meter reading continues for the purpose of highlighting consumptions so that volume charges can be billed
when the occupier has been identified. Disconnected commercial properties are not billed. If a household
property 1s unoccupied due to the customer being hospitalised or residing in care, and we are informed of this
in writing, the property is not billed.

MNew properties are charged from the date a meter is installed, if consumption is being recorded on the meter.
If the property is unoccupied but consumption is being registered, the developer will be billed. The developer
remains responsible for a property until handover details have been provided.

If a property is recorded as empty in the billing system, an empty property process is followed. The purpose
of this process is to verify whether the property is occupied or is genuinely empty and, if occupied, to identify
the person or persons responsible for charges and raise a bill. The empty property process may involve
electronic services using third-party data as well as visits to the properties. No bills are raised under the name
of the *occupier’.

3. Developer services — Other water revenue

The Group has an obligation to provide several services to enable developers to connect new properties and
other property developments to our water network. Details of developer services charges are available on the
Ciroup’s website and described below:

a) Network extensions

Network extensions relate to the Group laying new mains (and associated infrastructure) to enable a developer
to link their new property to the network. Essentially the work is the extending of the water network to serve
the new property and is separate from the actual connection of the property to the network itself. Revenue is
recognised over time as per [FRS 15:35, measuring revenue by the “input method’.

B Service connections

Service connection charges are paid by developers when they want to connect (or re-connect) a property to
our network. The charge is an initial application fee for which the customer is provided with a quote taken
from a set tariff table for the work to be underiaken. Customers are required to pay in advance for a
connection, thus creating a contract liability (note 1.19) for the Group when payment of the quote is received.

There is a contractual arrangement between the Group and the customer to supply the new connection based
on the tariff, with the Group's performance commitment being to connect the property to the Group's
network. The ultimate transaction price is the tariff price. The performance obligation is to connect the
property to the Group's network and revenue is recognised when this connection made.
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Accounting policies (continued)
Revenue fecontinued)
) Diversions

Diversions are when the Group moves our assets at the request of a developer or another party. These are
contractual arrangements with the Group’s performance commitment being to complete the diversion.
Revenue 15 therefore recognised based on the agreed price when the diversion work has been completed.

3. Developer services — Other water revenue fcontinued)

d) Infrastructure charges

Infrastructure charges are paid by developers when a new connection is made to our network, based on a
tariff. The charges are designed to cover the cost of network reinforcement work to accommodate the
additional demand from the new connection, such that this enhancement cost is not borne by existing
customers. The charge is due when a new connection is made.

The requirement to pay an infrastructure charge for new connections 1s in the Water Industry Act and so the
arrangement with a developer is considered a contract. The Group considers its performance obligation to be
delivered by the connection to the network. Whilst the charge is to cover demand driven enhancements to the
network, it does not relate to specific projects or the resultant assets. In addition, the contractual arrangement
for the infrastructure charge is between the Group and the developer who is not necessarily the party that will
ultimately benefit from the connection through ongoing water service (the occupier of the property).

The transaction price is the amount of consideration the Group expects to receive based on the tariff rate, It
15 considered that there 1s one performance obligation; therefore, there is no splitting of the transaction price
into separate elements relating to different obligations. That obligation is considered 1o have been met when
all the new connections are made and so revenue is recognised at that point.

4. Commission income

Commission revenue from other regulated water and wastewater companies (providing sewerage services to
the majority of our customers) is earned when SESW collects monies from customers on behalf of the other
regulated companies. SESW acts as an agent through a contractual arrangement, which sets the transaction
price and with the performance obligation being the collection of the debt and transfer to the other company.
The commission is paid based on the amount of debt collected and then transferred, with SESW recognising
the revenue when the performance obligation is satisfied (the cash being transferred).

3. Home Services

Home Services represents (excluding value added tax and insurance premium tax) the amount derived from
the installation, repair and maintenance of household central heating, plumbing and emergency services as
well as the commission on insurance policies sold.

In the UK, delivery of an item is considered a separate performance obligation from the installation of the
item, both satisfied at a point in time. Delivery is the point at which control passes to the customer as the
customers takes physical possession of the asset. It 15 also the point at which the Company has the nght to
consideration. Delivery and installation usually occur at the same point in time and consequenily revenue is
recognised for both performance obligations simultaneously.

a. Garage revenue

The Group receives a revenue for the servicing, repair and MOT facilities to third parties by the Group’s
zarage. A quote for work to be carried out is provided to the customer and if they agree to this then a contract
exists. The performance obligation is to complete the agreed work on the quote. Revenue is recognised when
the work has been completed, with the customer settling their bill when they collect their vehicle.
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119
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Accounting policies (continued)
Interest income / expense

Interest income/{expense) i1s recognised using the effective interest rate method. In calculating interest
income/ (expense), the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset, when the
asset 1s not impaired or to the amortised cost of the liability for interest expense. For financial assets that have
been impaired afier initial recognition, interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to
the amortised cost of the financial asset. If the asset is no longer impaired the interest income calculation
reverls to the gross carrying amount,

Rounding of amounts

All amounts in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest thousand Sterling
Pound, unless otherwise stated.

Contract liabilities

Contract liabilities are presented in the balance sheet and represent where a customer has paid an amount of
consideration prior to the Group meeting the performance obligation required to recognise the transaction in
the profit and loss account. An example would be for an unmeasured customer where the amount is billed
once at the start of the financial year based upon the rateable value of the property and is apportioned io
revienue over the period.

Contract liabilities have decreased to £6,266k (2022: £5,723k) due timing of money received in advance from
customers that will be passed to Thames Water upon billing,

Revenue that relates to carried-forward contract liabilities of £5,723k (2022: £9.306k) is recognized in the
current year as money received in advance from customers as at 31 March 2022 has been billed in the current
i

Leases

At inception, the group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease within the scope of IFRS 16. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration. Where a tangible asset is acquired through a lease, the group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. Right-of-use assets are
included within property, plant and equipment, apart from those that meet the definition of investment
property.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date plus any mitial direct costs and
an estimate of the cost of obligations to dismantle, remove, refurbish or restore the underlying asset and the
site om which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement
date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The
estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of other property, plant
and equipment. The right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for
certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are unpaid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, the group's incremental borrowing rate. Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease
liability comprise fixed payments, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, amounts
expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, and the cost of any options that the group is
reasonably certain to exercise, such as the exercise price under a purchase option, lease payments in an
optional renewal period, or penalties for early termination of a lease.
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Accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured when
there is a change in: future lease payments arising [rom a change in an index or rate; the group'’s estimate of
the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; or the group's assessment of whether it
will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option. When the lease liability 1s remeasured in this way,
a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit
or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases of
machinery that have a lease term of 12 months or less, or for leases of low-value assets including 1T
equipment. The payments associated with these leases are recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the lease term,

Expenses

Financing income and expenses

Financing expenses comprise interest payable, finance charges on shares classified as liabilities and finance
leases recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest method, unwinding of the discount on
provisions, and net foreign exchange losses that are recognised in the income statement (see foreign currency
accounting policy). Borrowing costs directly atiributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are
imcurred. Financing income comprise interest receivable on funds invested, dividend income, and net foreign
exchange gains.

Interest income and interest payable is recognised in profit or loss as it accrues, using the effective interest
method. Dividend income is recognised in the income statement on the date the entity’s right to receive
payments is established. Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on a net basis.

Taxation
The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.
Current tax

The tax currently pavable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as
reported in the income statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other vears and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting end
date.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax 1s the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrving amounts of
assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit, and is accounted for using the balance sheet hability method. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or
from the initial recognition of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the tax profit nor
the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting end date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that suflicient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered. Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the
liability is settled or the asset is realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the income statement, except
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1.24

Accounting policies (continued)
Taxation (continued)

when it relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with
in equity. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when the group has a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets and liabilities and the deferred tax assets and liabilities relate to taxes levied by the same
tax authority.

Dividends

Dividends are only recognised as a liability at the date of the balance sheet to the extent that they are declared
prior to year-end. Unpaid dividends that do not meet these criteria are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements,

Insurance receipts

Income from insurance policies is recognised when there is an enforceable insurance contract in place that
covers the event causing the loss and any amount to be received has been confirmed in writing by the insurer.
The receipt is recorded as other income in the profit and loss account and as a current asset on the balance
sheet at fair value which is considered to be the expected cash to be transferred, unless that cash flow is

expected to oceur afier one year in which case they are subsequently remeasured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method and recorded as non-current assets,

To identify classification in the cash flow management consider the nature of the transaction:

Insurance receipts relating to damaged PPE represent ‘in substance’ a disposal of PPE and are classified as
an investing activity (insurance proceeds are not derived from the principal revenue-producing activities of
the entity).

Revenue

Revenue for the group can be identified as per below:

2023 2022

£000 £000
Supply of water 113,528 100,901
Mon-Water income 9,227 10,707
Mon-appointed revenue 2,377 2,297
Rental income 112 121
Total 125,244 114,026

All revenue of the Group is generated within UK and Europe.
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Operating cost

Note 2023 2022
£000 £000
Wages and salaries 16,424 16,074
Social security costs 2,299 1,949
Other pension costs 19 2473 2,324
Power 6,821 6,617
Raw material and consumables 60,316 51,140
Depreciation of owned assets 12,726 12,157
Depreciation of right-ol-use assets 382 283
Depreciation of investment properties 27 27
Amortisation of intangibles 1,112 936
Impairment of intangible assets 141 -
Bad Debt provided for during the year - 12
Fees payable to the group’s auditors and its associates:
- For the audit of parent company and consolidated 92 56
financial statements
- For the audit of the financial statements of the 909 606
company s subsidiaries
- Audit of regulatory financial statements 55 50
- Other assurance services 50 79
Other operating charges 21,499 17,231
Management support and Service Agreement 400 400
Total operating costs 125,726 109,941

Wages and salaries disclosed above are shown net of capitalised costs. During the vear £4.291k {2022:
£2.462k) of employment costs were capitalised as fixed assets,

Other assurance services fees relate principally to assurance work carried out on the implementation of the
new hilling system ahead of go live in 2022. In 2023 there were non audit fees of £2k (2022: nil) paid for by
a parent company. Mo other fees were paid to PwC,

4 Other Operating Income
2023 2022
£000 £000
Proceeds from insurance claim - 1,970
Other operating income 1,017 106
Profit on sale of fixed assets 91 1,283
Other upemllng income 1,108 3,359

The bad debt release of £449 included in “Other operating income™ in prior vear is presented separately
under “Net impairment losses on financial and contract assets™ in the face of the income statement in current
year.

During the prior year, SESW received £1,970k insurance proceeds, relating to damage at one of its water
treatment facilities which occurred in 2017,

During the year, SESW agreed on a commercial settlement of £0.7m in relation to a dispute over
refurbishment works undertaken at a water treatments plant of SESW at Woodmansterne.
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Directors’ remuneration

No remuneration was paid to any other directors directly in respect of their services to the Company in the

heen made.

current financial year. For the directors holding office during the year, their duties to the Company are
considered to be incidental to their other duties within Sumitomo Corporation and therefore no allocation has

Directors do not have share options and did not receive awards during the year in the form of shares under

long-term incentive schemes (2022: £nil).

Mo pension benefits are accruing to any directors (2022; £nil).

Employees
The average monthly number of persons emploved by the Group (including directors) during the year were
as follows:
2023 2022
Number Number
Water supply 367 345
Other activities 115 123
482 468
The aggregate remuneration comprised:
2023 2022
£000 £000
Wages and salaries 16,424 16,074
Social security costs 2,299 1,949
Other pensions costs (note 19) 2,473 2,324
21,196 20,347
Finance income and finance expenses
2023 2022
£000 £000
Interest income
Expected retun on pension scheme assets 3124 2,227
Interest on post retirement liabilities (2.441) {1.862)
Met return on pension scheme asset 683 365
Interest receivable and similar income 208 17
Total finance income RO 3R2
2023 2022
£000 £000
Finance cost
Bond interest 5,547 5,005
Bond indexation 22,111 6,628
Bond amortisation cost® (1,373) (1,548)
Total cost of bond 26,285 10,085
Interest on bank overdrafis and loans 3,685 5,101
Total finance expenses 29,970 15,186
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7 Finance income and finance expenses (continued)

*The Secured Index-Linked Bond 2027-2031 was recognised at acquisition date fair value less attributable
transaction costs, Subsequent to initial recognition, the interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

There has been a £15.5m increase in non-cash indexation costs due to a rise of the Retail Price Index (RPI)
rate in the current year. In July 2021, the annual inflation change was 3.84%; in July 2022, it increased to
12.3%. Therefore, inflation increased by 220%, and the indexation charge increased by 234%.

5 Income tax credit/{expense)

2023 2022
Current tax £000 £000
UK corporation tax on profits for the current year (4) (3)
Adjustments in respect of prior years 499 (130)
95 {133

Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of temporary differences (4.835) (927
Changes in tax rates (1,505) 13,280
Adjustments in respect of prior years (2100 (271)
(6,550) 12,088
Taxation (credit)/charge for the year (6.455) 11,955

The {credit)/charge for the vear can be reconciled to the loss per the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income as follows:

2023 2022

£000 £000
Loss before taxation 30,829} (6,911
Expected tax credit based on a corporation tax rate of 19.00°% (5,858) (1.313)
(2022 19.00%)
Effect of expenses not deductible in determining taxable profit 129 02
Income not taxable (55) (256)
Adjustment in respect of prior years 94 (130
Effect of change in UK corporation lax rate (1,505) 13,286
Deferred tax adjustments in respect of prior vears (210 (271
Other adjustments (344) (327)
Rolled over gains - 374
Amounts not recognised 1,289 530
Deferred tax - -
Taxation (credit)/charge for the vear (6,455) 11,955
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Taxation {continued)
Factors affecting future tax rate

The UK corporation tax rate for the year ended 31 March 2023 was 19% (2022; 19%). The Finance Act 2021
enacted on 10 June 2021 increased the main rate of UK corporation tax from 19% to 25%, effective from
| April 2023, Deferred taxes on the balance sheet have been measured at 25% (2022: 25%) which represents
the future corporation tax rate that was enacted at the balance sheet date.

The Group filed research and development expenditure (“RDEC™) claims to the HMRC on qualifying
expenditure of £1,096k incurred by SESW for the year ended 31 March 2021 and that of £1.030k and £147k
incurred by SESW and Advanced Minerals for the year ended 31 March 2022, The Group received a refund
of claims of £224k for SESW in August 2023, The Group is currently performing an assessment on
qualifying expenditure under RDEC Scheme for the vear ended 31 March 2023,

40



GOL'TLE  FSO°I PET'S ISI°E 0SO°8LT  TSK'TR £ST'TH 6F0°T LGOS £T0T UMEW 1€V
OI19€  LaD'] P9 1T FOLE SOSTOl  DPROL SLOTG 1L0°T FLO'S TTOT YMEW (£
ASN[EA Yo Jak]

LFFOST  L69 - LTL IZ00DL  £FPSF6 SLG'TE F8F - £T0T UMEW 1€ IV
(LOF) (Lo1) - (8€T - (2 - - - s[esodsip uo uoneuIwIy
g01°€1 I8¢ - (s HE0'T 001°L DOLT it - Teak aup oy afiey])
OFL'LET I8P - 2016 786'L6 SPFLE 69T Tk oF - TTOT YME 1€V
(<) szl - - - - - - - uoHEUIWIY
(L69) - - (899) - (6zT) - - - s[esodsip uo pajeunui|y
0FF Tl £87 - 066 T06°1 r09'9 19°C 0T - 183K 2Y) 10§ dTIRY)
8TI'9cT  FTE - F8L'8 080°96 0L8°08 879'6¢ it - Iz0T (Hdy |y
noneatdag paenumnaay

QIT'ETO  ISL'I PET'R 806°T1 ILO'SLT  P6E°LLL RTTLEL £E8'7 Lo £T0T YMEW 1€V
- - (F99°LE) 95| PTSLI LLOBI r88 - €T SI3JSuRL]
(<) (€L7) - (g97) - () - - - sjesodsig]
£06°FT St FLTFT 051 - rE - - - SUOLIPPY
9SR'B6S  6LS'] FTOIL LFS'09T  SRU'SSI FrEOET £E5'7 PLO'S TTOT UMEW 1§ IV
- - (LSE1E) £t ro1°s SI50T CER'E - - sI3jsuel ],
(£L5) (£LE) - - - - . - - uoHEuII|g
(6EL) - - (989) - i6E) - - it1) spesodsic]
LOLYL L59 059°eT S - &4 - - - SHOMpPY
ILISLE  S6T°1 15F°6T 891721 ERESET  PRLLEN HOS1E] £ES°T 880°¢ 120z [udy 11y
D00F 0003 000F 000F 000F 000F D00F 000F 0003 1’00

yuepd SAI0ASISII
S)aRsE WOINI)EW0D Adpuns »p AIATDS
250 Jdapun sajayan SurEL _ﬁ._u-.___._uu..-._ N sA|0aa00 JTDAdDED

[¥10 ), Joaysry  siassy J0J0 NEITETY Pl “Suipping OO  pue) dnoany

juamdinba pue juepd ‘Oaadoag

6

Sjuaw e}y [e1oueul ay) 0} s2)0N]

PINWI () JJBAN SEL) BHESQ OYSIUNG



Sumisho Osaka Gas Water UK Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

10

Intangible assets

Software Contracts* Goodwill Work in
Progress Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cost
Balance at 1 April 2021 7,616 T.376 112,546 6,161 133,699
Additions during the year 48 - - 7,545 7.593
Disposals (2.836) - - - (2.836)
Transferred from under 2011 - - (2,011 -
construction
Other movements (458) - - 458 -
Balance at 31 March 2022 12,381 T.376 112,546 6,153 138,456
Additions during the year - - - 4,131 4,131
Disposals - - - - -
Transferred from under 2,039 - - (2,039 -
construction
Other movements - - - - -
Balance at 31 March 2023 14,420 7376 112,546 8,245 142,587
Accumulated Amortisation
Balance at 1 April 2021 i,y 6,260 - - 12,326
Charge for the year 773 163 - - 936
Eliminated on disposal (2.761) - - - (2.761)
Balance as at 31 March 2022 4,078 6,423 - - 10,501
Charge for the year 949 163 - - 112
Impairment for the year 141 - - - 141
Balance as at 31 March 2023 5,168 6,586 - - 11,754
Net book values
Balance as at 31 March 2022 5.303 053 112,546 0,153 127 955
Balance as at 31 March 2023 9,252 790 112,546 8,245 130,833

* Contracts relates to future income from operational contracts in existence at the time of acquisition.

Amortisation and impairment charge

The software included in the Group’s balance sheet primarily relates to two significant projects, One Serve
and Aptumo. One Serve is used to track all SESW's projects from network repairs to large capital projects.
The asset is carried at £441k (2022: £505k) and has a remaining amortisation period of six years (2022: seven
years) on a straight-line basis. Aptumo, SESW's new billing system went live in October 21 and is used for
all customer service operations and billing management. The asset is carried at £6.9m (2022: £6.5m) and has
a remaining amortisation period of 14 years (2022: 15 years) on a straight-line basis.
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Intangible assets (continued)

The development of SES Water Services Limited's latest billing system is presently on hold. The management
intends to complete this project after completion of the strategy review currently being undertaken by our
shareholders. Upon completion of this billing system, it will cater to all operations and billing management
for Business Water customers. The asset carried at year end is £6,930k (2022; £4,284k). While the asset is
not yet operational, no depreciation has been applied to it

Furthermore, Home Services is enhancing its existing systems through the "Stars project,” which is presently
in progress. The value of this asset at the vear end is £963k {2022: £466k), and it remains non-operational
with no amortization recorded against it.

Impairment test for Goodwill

In 2013, Sumisho Osaka Gas Water UK. Limited acquired the ESH Group at a consideration higher than the
fair value of the net assets acquired. As a result, goodwill was booked for the difference between the
consideration paid and the fair value of net assets acquired.

This goodwill is assessed for impairment on a yearly basis in line with the group policy. Goodwill itself does
not generate cashflows and so this has to be allocated to the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) which derives
benefit from the goodwill for impairment test purposes. Management’s approach is to treat the entire ESH

Group business as one CGU as that is the level at which the SOGWUEK Board of Directors assess and monitor
goodwill and business performance.

Goodwill recognised for the ESH Group CGU is as follows:
Goodwill Goodwill

2023 2022
£000 £000
ESH Group Cash Generating Unit 112,546 112,546

The recoverable amount of the CGU has been calculated using the fair value less disposal cost (FVLDC)
method. The fair value of the CGU was determined by using a discounted cashflow calculation based on the
most recent financial projections available for the business.

The regulated water business of SESW is by far the biggest business making up the ESH Group. As customary
practice Tor the UK water industry, Management has used a forecast period of twenty-five years, in line with
the notice period a water company has to be given before it can stop providing the regulated service. An exit
multiple is then applied 1o the regulatory capital value at that time to determine the terminal value. Both
elements are then discounted based on a post-tax nominal rate to derive the estimated fair value, from which
an estimated disposal cost is deducted to derive fair value less disposal cost.

As a regulated water company, the revenues and costs are significantly influenced by the regulatory
settlement for each AMP period. Key assumptions for AMP 7 are consistent with Ofwat’s PR19 Final
determination.

Cash flows bevond the end of the current AMP period are extrapolated using an assumed growth rate in the
Group’s regulatory capital base. The key assumptions of this calculation for SESW are shown below:

Key assumptions 2023 2022
Exit RCV multiples 1.20 1.15
Discount Rate £.45%, 4.7%
Inflation RPI 3% 3%
Inflation CPI 2% 2%

The discount rate is an estimate for the weighted average cost of capital at the year end date based on the
nominal WACC detailed in the Ofwat PR19 Final Determination.
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Intangible assets (continued)

Inflation assumptions are based on forecasts provided by Oxford economics which the Directors believe to
be a reliable third-party source who provide economic forecasts. The assumptions are consistent with the
Bank of England’s long-term CP1 inflation target of 2% and the historical 1% differential between RPI and
CPIL.

Owverall, the total fair value less disposal cost for the ESH Group CGU exceeded its carrying amount by
approximately £3.9m as at 31 March 2023,

Details on sensitivity analysis impacting future years are explained in the Critical accounting estimates and
Jjudgements note 235,

Investment properties

Investment
properties
£000
Cost
Balance at | April 2021 2800
Balance at 31 March 2022 2.860
Balance at 31 March 2023 2,860
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance at | April 2021 163
Charge for the year 27
Disposals -
Balance at 31 March 2022 190
Charge for the year 27
At 31 March 2023 217
Net book values
At 31 March 2022 2.670
At 31 March 2023 2.643

Investment properties are stated at cost less depreciation. The cost of the properties is then amortised in equal
instalments over the estimated useful economic lives.

Investments in subsidiaries

The Company has the following investments in subsidiaries.

Subsidiary undertakings

The registered address for all investments other than The Caleite Factory BY (Holland) 1s 66-74 London
Road, Redhill, Surrey. RH1 1LJ. All investments other than The Caleite Factory BV are registered and

operate in England and Wales. The registered address and operations for The Calcite Factory BV is Prodock,
9 Mozelhavenweg, Amsterdam.
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13

Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

The principal activities for all investments are as follows:

Name of Company Activity Class of Ownership
shares
2023 2022
Directly held:
East Surrey Holdings Limited  Holding Company Ordinary 100%  100%
Indirectly held:
Sutton and East Surrey Water  Water supply Ordinary 100%  100%
ple
SESW Holding Company Holding Company Ordinary 1005 100%,
Limited
Surrey Downs Property Property Investment Ordinary 100%  100%
Investment Limited
Surrey Downs Estates Limited  Property development Ordinary 100%  100%
Allmat {East Surrey) Limited Building supplies Ordinary 105G 100%
Advanced Minerals Limited Processes and sells minerals for Ordinary 20%, B0%
the bathroom industry
The Cheam Group ple Holding company Ordinary 100%  100%
Preference T9% T9%
Sutton and East Surrey Water  Water retail principally with Ordinary 100%  100%
Services Limited Home Services
The Sutton District Water ple Dormant Ordinary 4’ 1008 100%,
SES Home Services Limited Dormant Ordinary 100%  100%
SES Business Water Limited Dormant Ordinary 100%  100%
SES Water Limited Dormant Ordinary 100%  100%
The Calcite Factory B.V. Minerals processing Ordinary B0%% B0%
Deferred tax liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities are attributable to the following:
Deferred tax liabilities 2023 2022
£000 £000
Property, plant and equipment 42,017 48,658
Employee benefits (pension) 210l 6,322
Balance carvied forward 44,118 54,980
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Deferred tax liabilities (continued)

Meovement in deferred tax during the vear

Employee

Property, plant and benefits
equipment (pension) Total
£000 £000 £000
Arl April 2021 38210 3,699 41,909
Charged to the profit or loss 10,448 1,640 12,088
Charged to other comprehensive income - OR3 OR3
At 31 March 2022 48,658 6,322 54,980
{Credited)/charged to the profit or loss (6.641) 91 (6,550}
Credited to other comprehensive income - (4,312} (4,312)
At 31 March 2023 42,017 2,101 44,118

The Group has unrecognised deferred tax of £2,970k (2022: £1,382k) on tax losses and other deductible
temporary differences that are available for offsetting against future taxable profits or among entities within
the Group through group relief. The management remain prudent in the recognition of deferred tax assets as
some group companies were loss making in recent vears and the utilisation of unrecognised deferred tax
assets is uncertain due to the timing of its recoverability and further tax planning activity within the Group.,

Inventories

As at 31 March 2023 2022
£000 £000
Raw materials 815 782
Work in progress 43 21
Finished goods 595 579
1,453 1,382

During the current year, £60.316k (2022: £51,140k) of inventories was recognised as operating costs in the

profit or loss,
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Trade and other receivables

As at 31 March

2023 2022
£000 £000
Trade receivables 50,647 45 590
Provision for bad and doubtful debts (12,388) 10,272y
38,259 35,618
Other tax and social security 364 555
Other receivables 2,395 2,327
Prepayments 4,415 3,061
Contract assets 5 864 5,594
Corporation tax receivables 590 1,723
51,887 45,878
Movements in the expected credit losses provision were as follows:
2023 2022
£000 £000
At the beginning of the year 10,272 10,709
Charge for bad and doubtful debts 2,376 12
Bad debt release - (449
Bad debt write-off (260) -
At the end of the year 12,388 10,272
The ageing of trade receivables at the balance sheet date was as follows:
2023 2022
£000 £000
Mot past due 6,235 7601
Past due 0-30 days 5035 4,357
Past due 31-120 days 4,511 5,805
More than 120 days 34,866 28,117
50,647 45,890
The aged analysis for expected credit losses for receivables past due not individually impaired is:
Aged less  Aged between  Aged between  Aged greater Total
than 6 6 and 12 12 and 48 than 48
Trade receivable maonths maonths maonths maonths
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
At 31 March 2022 1.096 To8 4,642 3,766 10,272
At 31 March 2023 1,037 805 f,153 4,393 12,388
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As at 31 March 2023 2022
£000 £000
Cash 44,266 30814
Cash and cash equivalents 44,266 30814
Within bank balances there is £8.7m (2022: £5 8m) of restricted cash relating to the secured index-linked
bond.
17 Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
2023 022
Borrowings held at amortised cost; £000 £000
Long-term loans 110,875 94,825
2.874% Secured Index-Linked Bond 2027-2031 213,355 192,798
3.25% lrredeemable debentures S0 S0
5% Irredeemable debentures 52 52
Short-term overdrafi 15,000 0
Leases (note 22) ] Toh
340,012 288,491
Less: current portion (13,000 -
MNon-current portion 325012 288,491
Changes in liabilities from financing activities
Bond Bond Finance
3.25% %% £100m costs Other and lease
Irredeemable  Irredeemable 2LET4Y loans contract Total
debentures debentures (2027-
2031)
£000 £000 £000 £0040 £0040 £000 £000
Balance at 1 April 2021 50 52 192,139 (4421 BO.000 736 268,576
Changes from financing activities
Indexation - - 628 - - - 6,628
Amaortisation of bond cost - - A4 - - 444
Other borrowings - - - - 14,825 - 14,825
IFRS 16— lease liability - - . - . 10 10
Ajmﬂmfttmn of bond ) ) (1.992) - ) - (1,992)
revaluation
Balance at 31 March 2022 li] 52 196,775 (3.977) 04,825 Thi 28R 491
Changes from financing acrivities
Indexation - - 22111 - - - 22,111
Amortisation of bond cost - - 438 30 - 488
Dirawndown of borrowings - - - - 35,000 - 35,000
Repayment of borrowings - - - - (4,000) - (4, 0000)
[FRS 16— lease liability - - - - - (8] (B6)
An.-mrns?umn ol bond ) ) (1.992) - ) - (1,992)
revaluation
Balance at 31 March 2023 S0 52 216,394 (3.539) 125 875 HE0 340,012
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Interest-bearing loans and borrowings (continued)

Included in other loans are:

- the £36 m loan with Pacific Life held by East Surrey Holdings Limited shown net of arrangement
fees, which carries a fixed interest rate of 3.22% and is due or repayment in 2025;

- two RCF facilities with RBS held by SESW, the first is 3-vear £50m facility and the second is a 3-
vear facility of £25m, both of which were fully drawn down at the year-end date and have a margin
above SONIA rate; and

- £15m short-term overdraft from National Westminster Bank held by SESW which was fully drawn
down at the yvear-end date and has a fixed margin above Bank of England base rate. The short-term
overdraft of £15m was repaid in May 2023,

Trade and other payables

As at 31 March

2023 2022
£000 £000
Current
Trade payvables 12,337 10,358
Other trade payables 24,727 24,977
Overdraft 7835 9,272
Contract liabilities 6,266 5,723
Lease liabilities (see note 22) 399 i35
Deposits from developers 373 344
Accruals 18,717 18,798
70,654 69,807
Contract liabilities
Group
£000
Opening balance as at 1 April 2022 5,723
Revenue recognised that was included in the contract liability balance at the beginning of the (5,723)
car
%rm:rcasu due to cash received, excluding amounts recognised as revenue during the year 6,266
Closing balance as at the end of the year, 31 March 2023 6,260
Retirement benefit schemes
2023 2022
Defined contribution schemes £000 £000
Charge to profit or loss in respect of defined contribution schemes 2,473 2,324

The Group participates in both a defined coniribution scheme *Group Personal Pension Plan”™ {GPPP) which
is available for SESW employees, and a defined benefit scheme “The Water Companies Pension Scheme’
(WCPS) for qualifying employees,
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Retirement benefit schemes (continued)
Defined benefit scheme

WOCPS is a sectionalised scheme and the Company participates in the Sutton & East Surrey Water Section of
the Scheme. Plan assets held in the fund are poverned by local regulations and practice in the United
Kingdom. Responsibility for the govermnance of the plan including investment decisions and contribution
schedules lies jointly with the Company and the board of trustees of the fund.

The Company’s own section of the WCPS scheme closed to the future accrual of benefits with effect from
31 March 2019 with active members becoming entitled to deferred pensions within the scheme. The weighted
average duration of the expected benefit payments from the Section is around 15 years. Prior to its closure
members accrued their final salary until | April 2013 when it switched to a career average basis.

The risks of the scheme are as Tollows:
(a) Asset volatility

The plan liabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with reference to corporate bond vields; if
plan assets underperform this yield this will create a deficit. The plan holds the majority of its assets in
instruments guoted in an active financial market. The strategy is to invest in a combination of lower risk
assets {e.g. liability driven investments) which respond to factors such as changes in the interest rates.

i{b) Changes in Bond yields

A decrease in corporate bond yields will increase plan liabilities, although this will be partially offset
by an increase in the value of the plans” bond holdings.

{c) Life expectancy

The majority of the plan’s obligations are to provide benefits for the life of the member so increases in
life expectancy will result in an increase in the plan’s liabilities.

(dy Inflation risk

The pension obligations are linked to inflation and higher inflation will lead to higher liabilities
{although in most cases caps on the level of inflationary increases are in place to protect the plan against
extreme inflation). The majority of the plan’s assets are either unaffected by (in the case of fixed interest
bonds) or loosely correlated with (in the case of equities) inflation meaning that an increase in inflation
will also increase the deficit.

Guaranteed Minimum Pension (GMP)

The Group has continued to include an allowance of 1.4% of the value of the Section’s obligations in respect
of the cost of adjusting members™ benefits to remove the inequality caused by unequal Guaranteed Minimum
Pensions for current member of the Section.

Section buy-in

With effect from 31 March 2023, the Trustees of the Scheme invested in a buy-in policy with the insurance
company JUST which is intended to largely match the Section’s liabilities, which should reduce the volatility
seen through the liability in the pension scheme.
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Retirement benefit schemes (continued)

Valuation

A comprehensive actuarial valuation of the SESW's pension scheme, using the projected unit basis, was
carried out at 31 March 2022 by Lane Clark & Peacock LLP, independent consulting actuaries. Adjustments
to the valuation at that date have been made based on the following assumptions:

Assumptions regarding future mortality are set based on actuarial advice in accordance with published
statistics and experience in the UK. These assumpiions translate into an average life expectancy in years for

a pensioner retiring at age 60,

Deficit contributions

The entity didn’t make any deficit contributions as the scheme is in surplus.

Kev assumptions 2023 2022
Discount rate 2. %% 2. T%
Retail price inflation 1.6% 4.0%
Consumer price inflation 31% 3.5%
Life expectancy of a male aged 60 in 2023/2022 26.4 26.4
Life expectancy of a male aged 60 in 2047 283 283
Weighted average duration 12.0 14.0

Reconciliation of scheme assets and liabilities:

Carrying
Amount
Assets Liabilities
£000 £000 £000

At 1 April 2022 117,797 (91,532) 26,265

Interest on benefit obligations - (2.413) (2.4135)

Actuarial gains/{losses) due 1o

Changes in financial assumptions - 24352 24,352

Changes in demographic assumptions - 244 244

Experience adjustments on obligation - 4.418) {4.418)

Benefits paid (4.519 4,519 -

Interest on section assets 3,124 - 3,124

Actual return less interest on plan assets (37.576) - (37.576)

Expenses {305) - (3635)

At 31 March 2023 78,461 (69,250) 9,211

Please see SESW Financial Statements for additional information on the valuation of the defined

benefit pension scheme.
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Fair value of plan asseis 2023 2022
£000) £000
At 31 March
Liability driven investments - 28,220
Liquidity funds 8,338 14,208
Buy-in policy 68,674 -
BMO Global Absolute Return Bond Fund - 24317
Buy and maintain credit - 50,450
Met current assets 597 -
Cash 652 a2
Total 78,461 117,797

The majority of the Section assets are held within instruments with quoted market prices in active market.

The Section does not invest in property occupied by the Group or in the financial securities issued by the

Group.

Scheme obligations would have been affected by changes in assumptions as follows:

2023 2022

£000 £000
Change in inflation rate (+0.1%) T00 1.100
Change in inflation rate (-0.1%) {700 (1,100
Change in discount rate (+0.1%) R00 1.400
Change in discount rate (-0.1%) (=00 (1,300
Change in life expectancy (+1 vear) 3,000 4,600
Change in life expectancy (-1 year) (3,000 {4,600)

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption, while holding all
other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions
might be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit ohligation to significant
actuarial assumptions, the same method (that is, present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated
with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied as when
calculating the pension liability recognised within the statement of financial position.

The methods and types of assumption used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change

compared to the previous year.
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Retirement benefit schemes (continued)

Total fexpensel/credit recognized in the profit or loss

2023 2023 2023 2022 2022 2022
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
WCPS Unfunded Total WCPS Unfunded Total
Employer's part of current service cost
Section expenses (363) - (363) (244) - (244)
Past service cost - - - - - -
Met interest crediticharge) 709 (26) 683 384 (19 365
Met credit{expense) recognised in profit .
and loss for pensions schemes 344 (26) 318 140 (19) 121
Toial gainsiflosses) recognised in other comprehensive (expense)/income
2023 2023 2023 2022 22 2022
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
WCPS  Unfunded Total WCPS Unfunded Total
Met actuarial gains/(losses) in the year
due 1o:
Changes in financial assumptions 24,352 222 24,574 5,156 33 5,389
Changes in demographic assumptions 244 1 245 665 9 674
Experience adjustments on benefit
obligations 4.41%) (730 (4491) (1,207 (33)  (1,240)
Actual (loss)/gain on Section assets
relative to interest on Sechion assets (37.576) - (37,576) B35 - B33
{Loss)gain to recognise outside
profit and loss in other (17.398) 150 (17248) 5649 9 5658

comprehensive income
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Retirement benefit schemes (continued)

Changes in net assets/{liahilities) recognised in the balance sheet

2023 2023 2023 2022 2022 2022
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
WCPS Unfunded Total WCPS  Unfunded Total
Balance sheet asset/(liability) at 26,265 (973) 25,292 20,476 {(1,006) 19470
the beginning of the year
Credit/{charge) recognised in profit
and loss 144 (26) 118 140 (19 121
i Loss)/gain recognised in other
comprehensive Income (17.398) 150 (17,248 5,649 9 5,658
Company contributions paid - 47 47 - 43 43
Balance sheet asset/(liability) at
the end of the year 9211 (B02) 8,409 26,265 (973) 25292
Share Capital
As at 31 March 2023 2022
£000 £000
Allotted, called up and fully paid
349,100,002 (2022: 329,100,002) ordinary shares of £0.50 each 174,550 164,550
At 28 March 2023, the company was allotted 20,000,000 ordinary shares of £0.50 each.
Drividens
The following dividends were paid during the year:
2023 2022
£000 £000
EMNIl (2022 £0.01) per qualifying ordinary share - 3,500

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled

to one vote per share at meetings of the company.
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fa) Fair values of financial instruments

The table below analyses financial instruments, into a fair value hierarchy based on the valuation technique
used to determine fair value.

e  Level 1 quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

»  Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level | that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices)

« Level 3; inputs for the assets or liability that are not based on observable market data {unohservable
inpuis).

Determining the fair value of financial liabilities
The fair value of the bond is based on price quotations at the reporting date.

Fair value is determined using a quoted market bid price where available or otherwise based on discounted
expected future principal and interest cash flows using discount rates that reference to market interest rate
of loans with comparable maturity and credit risk of the entity at the reporting date. There is no material
difference between fair values and carrying amounts within the balance sheet of all other financial assets
and liabilities.

The fair values together with their carrying amounts are shown in the balance as follows:

Carrying Fair Level 1 Lewvel 2 Carrying Fair Lewvel 1 Lewvel 2

As at 31 March amount value Aot value

023 2023 223 2023 22 20022 022 2023

£004) £000 £000 £000 E00) L0000 £000 £0600
Financial liabilitics
measured at amortised cost
3.22% Pacific Life loan 35875 34003 . 34,113 35,825 35,945 - 35,945
2.874% secured index-linked 213,355 241,379 241,379 - 192,798 241,379 241,379
bond 2027 — 2031
Total financial instruments 249,230 275,492 241,379 34013 228,623 277324 241,379 35,9443

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the current and prior year.
(b)) Credit risk

The Group does not use derivative financial instruments to hedge its exposure to credit and interest rate risks
arising in the normal course of its business.

Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis.
Investments are only permitted in liguid securities and only with counterparties that have a credit rating equal
to or better than SESW. Given their high credit ratings, management does not expect any counterparty to fail
to meet its obligations.

Credit risk arises principally from trading (the supply of services to customers), the Group does not believe
it is exposed to any material concentrations that could have an impact on its ability to continue as a going
concern or its longer-term viability. The Group manages its risk from trading through the effective
management of customer relationships. Concentrations of credit risk with respect to trade receivables are
limited due to the majority of the Group's customer base being comprised of a large number of unrelated
households or, for other services, a wide number of trade customers, At the balance sheet date there were no
signilicant concentrations of credit risk.
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Financial instruments (continued)

fc) Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The
following are the undiscounted contractual maturities of linancial liabilities including estimated interest

payments:
31 March 2023 Undiscounted 1 vear 1to 5 vears
contractual to less <=5 years and over
cashflows

£000 £000 £000 £000

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Loan and other borrowing 75.000 - 75,000 -
Debentures 102 - - 102
Overdrafis 7.835 7.835 - -
Short term overdraft 15,142 15,142 - -
Trade and other payables 62,821 62,821 ; .

Interest rate - 2.874% secured index-
linked bond 2027-2031 324,936 6,024 L 236,030
Interest rate — 3.22% 30477 1.159 38318 -
525,313 92,981 196,200 236,132
31 March 2022 Undiscounted 1 vear 1to S vears
contractual to less =5 years and over

cashflows

£000 £000 £000 £000

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Loan and other borrowing 39,000 - 55,000 -
Debentures 102 - - 102
Overdrafis 9272 9,272 - -
Trade and other payables 60,535 60,535 - -
Interest rate - 2.874% secured index- 290 488 5327 25,534 268,627

linked bond 2027-2031

Interest rate — 3.22% 40,119 1,159 38,960 -
468.516 76,293 123,494 268,729

Undrawn committed borrowing facilities

Undrawn borrowing facilities available to the Group are set out below. The facilities available at the balance

sheet date are unsecured.

As at 31 March 2023 2022
£000 £000
Expiring in one year or less - 1000
Expiring between one and two years - -
Expiring in more than two years 1,000 16,000
1,000 17,000
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Financial instruments (continued)
fd) Marker risk
Financial risk management

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity
prices will affect the Group's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments.

Market risk — Foreign curvency risk

The Group does not have any exposure to currency risk since all activities are conducted in the UK and all
borrowings are denominated in £ sterling,

Marker risk — Interest rate risk

The Group adopts a policy of ensuring the majority of its exposure to interest rate charges on borrowings is
on a fixed rate basis. The long-dated inflation-linked bond was issued at a rate of interest of 2.874%,. The
index-linked nature of the bond reflects the index-linked so that the capital sum and interest payment increase
with RPI.

The indexation charge is treated as an interest cost but does not have any immediate cash flow impact on the
Group. The bond was issued on 21 March 2001 and is secured upon the shares of Sutton and East Surrey
Water ple. In the event of default, the interest and capital payvments are insured by Assured Guaranty Limited.
The bonds and debentures are at fixed rates of interest. Borrowings made under the current overdrafi facilities
will be at a varable rate above base rate/SONIA, and longer-term borrowings will be at a margin above
SONIA., The Pacific Life Loan of £36m is at a fixed interest rate and therefore does not attract any interest
rate risk.

Fensitivity analysis

A change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the balance sheet date would have increased/{decreased)
equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This caleulation assumes that the change oceurred at
the balance sheet date and had been applied to risk exposures existing at that date. This analysis assumes that

all other variables remain constant and considers the effect of financial instruments with variable interest
rates. The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2022,

2023 2022
£000 £000
Equity
Increase 68 473
Decrease (768 {473)
Profit or loss
Increase (768) (473)
Decrease 768 473

{e) Inflation risk

The Group earns an economic return on its RCV, comprising a real return through revenues and an inflation
return as an uplift to its RCV. Currently, the Group's regulatory assets are linked to RPI inflation however,
following Ofwat’s decision to transition to the use of CPIH for inflation indexation for the 2020-25 regulatory
period, from 2020 the Group's RCV will be 50 per cent linked to RPI inflation and 30 per cent linked to CPIH
inflation, with any new additions being added 1o the CPIH portion of the RCV.
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Financial instruments (continued)
(e) Inflation risk (continued)

The Group believes this is an appropriate inflation hedging policy taking into account a balanced assessment
of the following factors: economic hedge of the Group’s RCV and revenues: cash flow timing mismatch
between allowed cost of debt and the Group’s incurred cost of debt: the inflation risk premium that is
generally incorporated into nominal debt costs; mcome statement volatility; hedging cosis; debt maturity
profile mismatch risk; and index-linked hedging positioning relative to the water sector,

The carrying value of index-linked debt held by the Group was £213.355 million at 31 March 2023 (2022:
£192.798 million).

() Capital management

The fundamental principles of the Group’s capital management are to maintain an appropriate level of capital
and debt and equity balance to manage business risk for the purpose of maintaining management soundness
and efficiency and to promote continuous growth.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt and equity as disclosed in note 20. The Group’s net
debt i1s comprised of cash and cash equivalents, debentures, bank and other loans and an index-linked bond.

The group’s objectives when managing capital are to:

¢« Safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for
sharcholders and benefits for other stakeholders; and

*  Maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group might adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to sharcholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Gearing

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio which, in
line with the prior year, it aims to maintain at 60%. Gearing is measured by the ratio of net indebtedness io
regulatory capital value (RCV). The ratio at the end of the current year was 77% (2022: 72% — restated as
per SES Water published annual report). The increase in gearing ratio was atiributed to the additional draw-
down of RCF and the indexation charge on the index-linked bond during the current year.

Loan covenants

Under the terms of the major borrowing facilities (as disclosed in note 17), the Group is required to comply
with the following financial covenants:

¢ As per the agreement of £100m index-linked bond, the issuer shall maintain at each calculation date 7
May and 7 November each year covering calculation period of 12 months ending 3 1st March and 3 st
October an interest cover ratio of at least 1.10:1, an adjusted interest cover ratio of at least 1.0:1.0 and a
Regulated Asset Ratio of not more than 0.95:1,

o  Under the same agreement the issuer shall submit a business plan which reflects a revised price
determination on each scheduled price determination date under the Instrument of Appointment so as to
maintain a Forward-looking Interest Cover Ratio of at least 1.30:1; and a Regulatory Asset Ratio of less

than or equal o 0.80:1.

¢«  Under the agreement of £36m loan, ESH will not create, assume, incur or guarantee or otherwise be or
become liable in respect of any indebtedness other than under this agreement. The Group shall permit
the ICR (Interest Cover Ratio) in respect of any calculation period to be less than 1.10:1 and the RAR
(Regulated Asset Ratio) to exceed 0.95:1.

The Group has complied with these covenants throughout the current and prior reporting period.
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Financial instruments (continued)
Dividends

The Group pays dividends to its parent if, in the view of the directors, there are sufficient distributable reserves
and there is no threat to capital adequacy of the Company. During the year dividends for the vear ended 31
March 2022 of £nil (2021: £1,750,000) and Interim dividend for the year ended 31 March 2023 of £nil (2022:
£1,750,0007) was paid. No further dividends have been proposed or declared.

Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities

The Group adopted IFRS 16 leases on | April 2019, using the modified retrospective approach whereby right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities were brought onto the balance sheet at the present value of future lease
payments using the appropriate discount rate.

Payments associated with short-term leases of the twelve electric vehicles are recognized on a straight-line
basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less,

The Group has lease contracts for electric commercial vehicles used in operations. The amounts recognized
in the financial statements in relation to the leases are as follows:

Amaounts recognised in the balance sheet:

31 March 2023 SESW SESWS AML Total
£000 £000 £000 £000

Right of use assets

Vehicles 16 - - Bl6

Plant & Machinery - - TR 238
Bl6 - 238 1,054

Lease liabilities

Current 307 - 92 399

Non-current 530 - 150 aal
837 - 242 1,079

31 March 2022 SESW SESWS AML Total

£000 £000 £0040) £000

Right of use assets

Vehicles 625 = - 625

Plant & Machinery - - 128 328

Buildings - 144 - 144
625 144 328 1,097

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities 212 i3 a0 335

Long-term lease liahilities 412 111 243 Toh
624 144 333 1,101

Adoption of IFRS 16 was based on lease contracts commencing from April 2019,
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Amounis recagnised in Statement of Profii or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income:

As at 31 March 2023 SESW SESWS AML Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
Depreciation charge of right of use assets
Yehicles 252 - - 252
Plant & Machinery - - Q2 a9z
Buildings - 318 - kL
252 38 92 352
Interest expense 28 10 7 45
Undiscounted contractual maturities as at 31 March 2023 are as follows;
£000 £000 £000 £000
Mot later than one year 307 - 92 399
Between one and five vears 550 - 161 720
Later than five years - - - -
Total gross payments RiG6 - 251 1119
Impact of finance expenses (29 - (11 (40
Carrying amount of liability 837 - 242 1,079
As at 31 March 2022 SESW SESWS AML Taotal
£000 £000 £000 £000
Depreciation charge of right of use assets
Wehicles 149 - - 1449
Plant & Machinery - - 92 92
Buildings - 42 - 42
149 42 92 283
Interest expense 14 1 1] 44
Undiscounted contractual maturities as at 31 March 2022 are as follows:
£000 £000 £000 £000
Mot later than one year 212 44 % 354
Later than one year and not later than five years 427 122 252 a01
Later than five years - - - -
Total gross payments 639 166 350 I.155
Impact of finance expenses i(15) (22} (17} (54)
Carrying amount of liability 624 144 333 1,101
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Commitments

As at 31 March 2023 2022
£000 £000

Contracted capital commitments 3,000 101,400

Related parties

Tdentive of velated parvties with which the Group has transacted
The Group had transactions with subsidianies of Sumitomo Corporation, the ultimate parent company of
Summit Water Limited. Summit Water Limited owns 50% of the Group.

Administrative expenses
incurred from

2023 2022
£000 £000
Shareholders 400 400
Othn_:r related 39 39
parties

439 439

As at 31 March Receivables outstanding Pavables outstanding
2023 2022 2023 2022
£000 £000 £000 £000
Onther related parties 4 5 - 22
4 5 - 11

Transactions with key management personnel
The compensation of key management personnel;

As set out in note 5 and 6, the average number of persons employed by the parent company during the year
is mil {2022: nil). As also noted, no remuneration was paid to directors during the year (2022: Lnil).

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

In the application of the company’s accounting policies, the directors are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrving amount of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates,

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
eslimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised, if the revision affects only that period,
or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The estimates and assumptions which have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities are outlined below.
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Critical accounting estimates and judgements (continued)
Goodwill

Goodwill is assessed annually for impairments by analysing the net present value of the groups future
cashflows. To date, no impairments have been made and the cashflows are in excess of the value of goodwill
as at the date of these statements.

In identifying the assumptions used to assess the carrying value of goodwill, the Directors have considered a
range of valuation inputs. These have included data poinis [rom market information, similar peer group
companies and other utilities, and management’s internal forecasting.

The key assumptions which generate material estimation uncertainty to carryving value of goodwill over the
next financial year are the weighted average cost of capital ("WACC") and exit multiple applied to the assets
of the appointed business.

The Directors have considered the on-going trends in the macroeconomic environment such as increases in
cost of living in the UK and rising cost of debt and concluded that a reasonably possible change in the
appointed business WACC assumption at 31 March 2023 is between 6.45% to 7.5% within the next financial
year,

The Directors have also considered the performance in the appointed business and concluded that a reasonably
possible change in the exit multiple assumption at 31 March 2023 is between 1.1x and 1.2x within the next
financial year.

This is also consistent with the level of changes in these assumptions during the previous financial yvear to 31
March 2023,

The Directors have set out the impact on carrying value of goodwill below:
o A Discount rate of 7.3% and 1.1x exit multiple would result in an impairment of goodwill of £72m.

e A discount rate of 6.8% and 1.1x exit multiple which would result in an impairment of goodwill of

£34m.

o A discount rate of 6.45% and 1.15x exit multiple which is the middle range scenario would result in
an impairment of goodwill of £4m.

The company will continue to assess the carrying value of its investment and assessment of Goodwill
annually.

Estimate - unbilled measured income

The measured income accrual within SESW is an estimate of the amount of water consumed by customers
but not yet billed as of the vear end. The water companies use a defined methodology based upon estimating
the amounts of water that has been consumed. The methodology includes using known factors such as the
date of the customers” last bill, the tariff upon which they pay, and an estimate of water consumed since their
last meter read based on historical consumption levels for each customer.

If the volumetric element of the measured accrual were to vary by 5% this would impact the accrual by £430k
(2022: £380K).

Estimate - Defined benefit pension scheme

SESW is required to pay pension obligations to former employees. The cost of these benefits and the present
value of the related obligation depends upon a number of factors including life expectancy, asset valuations
and the discount rate based on scheme assets.

The pension asset and liability shown in the balance sheet use these assumptions, the assumptions reflect
historical experience and current trends and are set in consultation with appropriately qualified and
experienced professional advisors. Sensitivities in respect of these assumptions are shown in note 19,
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Critical accounting estimates and judgements (continued)
Exstimate - Provision of doubifid deb

SESW and SESWS calculate a provision against trade receivables based on an assessment of the
recoverability and estimates for expected credit losses based on historical trends of the cash collection rate,
review of current economic environment, the age of the debt, and actual write-off history, The actual level of
receivables collected may differ either favourably or negatively from those estimates given.

The Covid-19 pandemic and subsequent cost of living crisis has impacted ability for customers (both
household and non-household) to pay, which put upward pressure on the provision for doubtful debts, Despite
increasing its cash collection activities both in house and through external debt collection agencies, the level
of debt owed by customers has increased and as a result an increase of £2.1m was applied to the bad debt
provision as at 31 March 2023,

Judgement — Capitalisation of expenditure as property, plant and equipment

SESW makes large scale investment into its property, plant and equipment through construction and
engineering projects. Management is required to make a judgement of assessing the classification of costs
between operating expenditure and capital expenditure. SESW capitalises costs where the expenditure
enhances assels or increased the capacity of the network, providing the assets meets the criteria to be
capitalised, this includes an element of employee costs where the individuals contribute to the overall capital
programme but not specifically on an individual project, an estimation of time spent on capex related activities
is used to determine the recharge amount which is reviewed on a guarterly basis.

Post Balance Sheet Events

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, 31 March 2023 management has evaluated events through 27
November 2023, which is the date the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued,
there were no subsequent events that required adjustment to the group financial statements. Full details
of events after reporting date are explained in the Directors” Report.

The Sharcholders of the Company have engaged financial advisors to undertake a strategic review of the
SOGWUK Group’s business, including SESW and as of October 2023 they are in advanced negotiations with
a potential buyer of the sale of the company. The potential sale is not yet finalised and remains conditional
on final agreement and approvals, therefore it remains uncertain at the date of signing these accounts 1f the
proposed sale will proceed.

Parent undertaking and ultimate parent undertaking

The group is 50% owned by Summit Water Limited, a company incorporated at Vintners Place, 68 Upper
Thames Street, London, EC4V 3BJ, and 50% owned by Osaka Gas UK Limited, a company incorporated at
Ist Floor, Carrington House, 126 - 130 Regent Street, London, W1B 55E. There are no parent undertakings
and no party has control of the group.
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2023 2022
Note £000 £000
Non-current assets
Investments i3 148,494 161,600
Deferred tax assets 32 443 492
148,942 [62,092
Current assets
Debtors 34 12,094 1,019
Cash at bank and in hand 1,717 2,817
13,811 3836
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 35 (91) (100}
Financial guarantee liabilities 38 (1.7707 (1.967)
MNet current assets 11,950 1,769
Net assets 160,892 163,861
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 36 174,550 164,550
Profit and loss account® (13,658) (H89)
Total Shareholders® funds 160,892 163,861

* The company’s loss after tax for the year ended 31 March 2023 was £12,969,000 (2022: Profit of £2,003,000).

The notes on pages 66 to 73 form part of the financial statements.

These financial statements on pages 64 to 73 were approved by the Board of Directors on 27 November 2023 and
signed on its behalf by:

A\qb&\é/

K Kageyama
Director

Company Registration No: 08369318
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Company Statement of Changes in Equity

Taotal
Called up  Profit and loss  Shareholders®
share capital account Funds
£000 £000 £000
Balance brought forward | April 2021 164,550 808 165,358
Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit for vear 2,003 2,003
Total comprehensive income for the vear 2,003 2,003
Dividend paid (3,500 i3.5007
Total transactions with Owners - (3,500 (3.5000
Balance carried forward 31 March 2022 164,550 (689) 163,861
Balance brought forward 1 April 2022 164,550 (689) 163,861
Total comprehensive expense for the year
Loss for vear (12,969) i(12,969)
Total comprehensive expense for the vear - (12,969) i12,969)
Issue of shares 10,000 - 10,000
Balance carried forward 31 March 2023 174,550 {13.658) 160,892

The notes on pages 66 to 73 form part of the financial statements.
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Accounting policies
Basis of accounting

Sumisho Osaka Gas Water UK Limited (the “*Company™) is a company incorporated and domiciled in
the UK. The Company is a private company limited by shares. The address of the registered office is
Vintners” Place, 68 Upper Thames Street, London, EC4V 3B

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101
Reduced Disclosure Framework (FRS 101) and in accordance with applicable accounting standards and
the requirements of the Companies Act 2006,

Under section s408 of the Companies Act 2006 the company is exempt from the requirement to present
its own profit and loss account. The company’s loss for the year ended 31 March 2023 was £12,969,000
(2022: Profit of £ 2,003,000).

The company is 50% owned by Summit Water Limited, a company incorporated at Vininers Place, 68
Upper Thames Street, London, EC4V 3BJ, and 50% owned by Osaka Gas UK Limited, a company
incorporated at 1* Floor, Carrington House, 126 — 130 Regent Sireet, London, W1B 55E. There are no
parent undertakings and no party have control of the company.

In these financial statements, the company has applied the exemptions available under FRS 101 in
respect of the following disclosures:

« A Statement of Comprehensive income;

= A Cash Flow Statement and related notes;

+  Comparative period reconciliations for share capital, intangible assets and investments;

+  Disclosures in respect of transactions with wholly owned subsidiaries;

+  Disclosures in respect of capital management;

+  The effects of new but not vet effective IFRSs;

+  Disclosures of transactions with a management entity that provides key management personnel
services to the Company;

+  The Company proposes to continue to adopt the reduced disclosure framework of FRS 101 in its
next financial statements; and

+  Disclosure of financial instruments in ling with IFRS 7. The Company proposes to continue to
adopt the reduced disclosure framework of FRS 101 in its next financial statements.

The accounting policies set out below have, unless otherwise stated, been applied consistently to all
periods presented in these financial statements.

The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis unless otherwise stated in these notes
to the financial statements.

Going Concern

The Directors have considered the Company’s assets (and in particular its investments in associated
companies) and liabilities as at the date of signing these financial statements and have concluded that
the Company will continue to be able to meet its liabilities for at least twelve months from the date of
signature of these financial statements.

On 12 July 2023, the Company received a Letter of Support from Sumitomo Corporation and Osaka
Gas Co. Ltd, the ultimate parent undertakings for at least 12 months from the date of signing these
financial statements, and is only valid to the extent the Company remains wholly owned by its current
shareholders. This obligates Sumitomo Corporation and Osaka Gas Co. Lid to provide the Company
financial support as necessary such that the Group is able to operate as a going concern.

Howewver, as noted in the Strategic Report the Shareholders of the company are in advanced negotiations
with a potential buyer for the sale of the company, which may complete within the next 12 months. The
Company’s Directors do not have access to financing arrangements of the potential purchaser going
forward or visibility of strategic plans or forecasts under any new ownership and therefore the directors
are unable to incorporate these plans in their going concern assessment. As such, this creates a material
uncertainty that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
The financial statements do not contain the adjustments that would arise if the Company were unable
to continue as a going concern.
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Accounting policies (continued)

Investments

Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any provision for impairment,
Other income

Other income represents income and dividends received from subsidiaries in respect of management
services provided.

Taxation
The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.
Cuerrent fax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the vear. Taxable profit differs from net profit
as reporied in the income statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the reporting end date.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be recognised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the tax profit nor the accounting profit,

The carrying amount of deferred tax asseis is reviewed at each reporting end date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of
the asset to be recovered. Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period when the liability is settled, or the asset is recognised. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the
income statement, except when it relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case
the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when the group
has a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and the deferred tax assets and
liabilities relate to taxes levied by the same tax authority.

Dividends

Dividends are only recognised as a liability to the extent that they are declared prior to the vear end,
Unpaid dividends that do not meet these criteria are disclosed in the notes to the Financial Statements.

Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized in the company’s balance sheet when the
company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial guarantee contract

According to IFRS9, financial guarantee contract {FGC) is a contract that requires the issuer to make
specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payments when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. An issued FGC is a financial
liability and is initially recognised at fair value, If the FGC is issued to an unrelated party at arms-
length, the initial fair value is likely to equal the premium received. If no premium is received (often
the case in intragroup situations), the fair value must be determined using a different method that
quantifies the economic benefit of the FGC to the holder. The present value of this differential over the
term of the loan would therefore be the initial fair value.

Subsequently, the FGC is measured the IFRS 9 Expected Credit Loss (ECL) allowance.
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Accounting policies (continued)
Trade receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition they
are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment losses,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, ather short-term liguid
investments with original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. All transactions are
recognised on their transaction date.

Financial liabilities and equity

Following the adoption of TAS 32, financial instruments issued by the Company are treated as equity
(i.e., forming part of shareholders’ funds) only to the extent that they meet the following two conditions:

a) they include no contractual obligations upon the Company to deliver cash or other financial assets
or to exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another party under conditions that are
potentially unfavourable to the Company; and

b) where the instrument will or may be settled in the Company’s own equily instruments, it is either
a non-derivative that includes no obligation 1o deliver a variable number of the Company’s own
equity instruments or is a derivative that will be settled by the Company’s exchanging a fixed
amount of cash or other financial assets for a fixed number of its own equity instruments.

To the extent that this definition is not met, the proceeds of issue are classified as a financial liability.
Where the instrument so classified takes the legal form of the Company’s own shares, the amounts
presented in these financial statements for called up share capital and share premium account exclude
amounts in relation to those shares.

Finance payments associated with financial liabilities are dealt with as part of interest payable and
similar charges. Finance payments associated with financial instruments that are classified as part of
shareholders” funds (see dividends policy), are dealt with as appropriations in the reconciliation of
movements in shareholders™ funds,

Trade payables

Trade payahles, including balances held with group companies, are initially measured at fair value, and
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method. All transactions
are recognised on their transaction date,

Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rates of exchange at the date of the transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are reported
at the rates of exchange prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not retranslated.

Remuneration of directors

Mo remuneration was paid to any other directors directly in respect of their services to the Company in
the current financial year. For the directors holding office during the year, their duties to the Company
are considered to be incidental to their other duties within Sumitomo Corporation and therefore no
allocation has been made.

Directors do not have share options and did not receive awards during the year in the form of shares
under long-term incentive schemes (2022: nil).
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Note 2023 2022
£000 £000
Management Fees 100 100
Interest income 16 -
Unordinary Income 38 197 -
Dividends - 3,500
31 Expenses and auditors’ remuneration
2023 2022
£000 £000
Included in profit are the following:
Auditors” remuneration:
Audit of these financial statements 92 56
Underprovision in previous years 4 -
b6 56
In 2023 there were non audit fees of £2k (2022 nil) paid for by a parent company.
32 Taxation
A Recagnised in the profit and loss account
2023 2022
UK corporation tax £000 £000
Current tax credit on income for the vear 4] (5
Deferred tax 49 (492)
Tax credit on (loss)/profit 45 (497)
B Reconciliation of effective tax rate

The tax charge for the vear is higher to (2022: lower) the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of
19% (2022: 19%:). The differences are explained below.

2023 2022
£000 £000
{Loss)/Profit for the year {12.969) 2,003
Total tax charge/{credit) 45 (497
{Loss)/Profit excluding tax {12,924) 1,506
Tax using the UK corporation tax (2.456) 286
rate of 19% (2022: 19%)
Elfcct oft
UK dividend income - (663)
Disallowable expense 2.490 -
Differences in tax rates 11 {118)
Taotal tax charge/(credit) 45 {497)
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33

Taxation (continued)

Factors affecting the tax charge/(credit) for future vears

An increase in the UK Corporation tax from 19% to 25% (effective | April 2023} was substantively
enacted on 24 May 2021 and confirmed on 17 October 2022 by the Chancellor of the Exchequer. This
will increase the company s future current tax charge accordingly.

Deferred taxes on the balance sheet have been measured at 25% (2022: 25%) which represents the
future corporation tax rate that was enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets

2023 2022
Deferred tax assets are attributable to the £000 £000
following:
Losses 443 492
MNet tax assets 443 492
2023 Recognised in 2022
Movements in deferred tax £000 income statement £000
during the yvear £000
Losses 443 449 492
MNet tax assets 443 49 492
Investments
Subsidiary
companies
£000
Details of movements in the vear:
At 1 April 2022 161,600
Additions -
Disposals -
At 31 March 2023 161,600
Provisions for impairment:
Asat | Apnl 2022 -
Provision [or the year 13,101
At 31 March 2023 13,101
Met book value:
At 31 March 2022 161,600
At 31 March 2023 145,499
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Investments (continued)

The Company performed an assessment on the carrying value of the investment it holds in ESH group.
In assessing the carryving value, the Directors have considered the key assumptions when calculating
the higher of value in use and fair value less cost to sell as compared to the carrying amount of the
investment in the ESH Group. As a result the Directors have recognised an impairment of £13.1m for
the year in the SOGWUK Company financial statements. For further details on sensitivity analysis
impacting future years are explained in the Critical accounting estimates and judgements note 37.

The registered address for all investments other than The Caleite Factory BV (Holland) is 66-74 London
Road, Redhill, Surrey, RH1 1LJ. All investments other than The Caleite Factory BV are registered and
operate in England and Wales. The registered address and operations for The Calcite Factory BV is
Prodock, 9 Mozelhavenweg, Amsterdam.

Debtors
As at 31 March 2023 2022
£000 £000
Due from subsidiaries 12,080 1,005
Other debtors 14 14
12,094 1.019
Due within one year 12,094 1,019

Included in the amounts receivable [rom subsidiaries are unsecured, interest bearing short term
shareholders loans of £7 000,000 to Sutton and East Surrey Water Ple due 7 May 2023 charging 6%
interest, and £4,000,000 to Sutton and East Surrey Water Services Limited due 31 March 2024 charging
5.85% interest.

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

As at 31 March 2023 2022
£000 £

Duie to subsidiaries - 22
Accruals and deferred income [t 56
Other creditors 23 22
2 100

Called up share capital

Called up Share Capital
As at 31 March 2023 2022

£000 £000
Allotted, called up and fully paid:

349 100,002 (2022; 329,100,002) ordinary shares of £0.50 each 174,550 164,550

During the year, 20,000,000 ordinary shares with a nominal value of £10,000,000 were issued by the
Company. The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time
and are entitled to one vole per share al meetings of the company. On 24 August 2023, the company
was allotted 4,000,000 ordinary shares with a nominal value of £0.50 each.
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Called up share capital (continued)

Dividends

The following interim dividends were paid during the vear:

2023 2022
£000 £000
£nil (2022: £0.01) per qualifying ordinary share - 3,300

Critical accounting estimates and judgements
Investmenis:

Investments in subsidiary companies are stated at cost less impairments which are shown in note 33 of
these financial statements. The board has assessed the recoverability ol investments in subsidiary
companies in the year and concluded after taking the key assumptions into account and calculating the
higher of value in use and fair value less cost to sell as compared to the carrying amount of the
investment in the ESH Group. The Directors have recognised an impairment of £13.1m lor the year in
the SOGWUK Company [inancial statements.

In identifying the assumptions used to assess the carryving value of investments, the Directors have
considered a range of valuation inputs. These have included data points from market information,
similar peer group companies and other utilities, and management's internal forecasting.

The key assumptions which generate material estimation uncertainty to carrying value of the investment
in the ESH group over the next financial year are the weighted average cost of capital ("WACC") and
exit multiple applied to the assets of the appointed business,

The Directors have considered the on-going trends in the macroeconomic environment such as
increases in cost of living in the UK and rising cost of debt and concluded that a reasonably possible
change in the appointed business WACC assumption at 31 March 2023 is between 6.43% to 7.5%
within the next financial year.

The Directors have also considered the performance in the appointed business and concluded that a
reasonably possible change 1n the exit multiple assumption at 31 March 2023 is between 1.1x and 1.2x
within the next financial year.

This is also consistent with the level of changes in these assumptions during the previous financial year
to 31 March 2023,

The Directors have set out the impact on carrying value of investment below:
A Discount rate of 7.5% and 1.1x exit multiple would result in an impairment of £76m.
¢ A discount rate of 6.8% and 1.1x exit multiple would result in an impairment of £37m.

e A discount rate of 6.45% and 1.15x exit multiple which is the middle range scenario would
result in an impairment of £8m,

The company will continue to assess investment value annually and also consider events post year end.
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Financial guarantee liabilities

Sumisho Osaka Gas Water UK Limited {(SOGWUK) is a guarantor to Sutton and East Surrey Water
Services Limited (SESWS) for a credit facility provided by HSBC. The total guaranteed amount is
£15m as at the balance sheet date of these financial statements. The fair value of the liability for the
financial guarantee has been determined using the interest rate differentials method and is amortised
over 10 vears on a straight line basis.

Amortised
As at 31 March: 2023 during 2022
£000 vear £000

£000
Fair Value of Liability 1,770 (197) 1,967

Parent undertaking and ultimate parent undertaking

The company is 50% owned by Summit Water Limited, a company incorporated at Vininers Place, 68
Upper Thames Street, London, EC4V 3BJ, and 50% owned by Osaka Gas UK Limited, a company
incorporated at 1st Floor, Carrington House, 126 - 130 Regent Street, London, W 1B 55E. There are no
parent undertakings, and no party has control of the company.

Post balance sheet events

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, 31 March 2023 management has evaluated events to 27 November
2023, which is the date the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.

On 12 July 2023 and 11 August 2023, the Company increased its investment in East Surrey Holdings
by £2 million and £5 million respectively.

On 23 August 2023 the Company issued 4,000,000 shares with nominal value of £0.50 per share with
total value of £2,000,000 which were paid by Summit Water Limited and Osaka Gas UK Limited on
the same day.

During the current year, SOGWUK supported SESWS, the water retail division of the Group with
shareholder’s loans of £4m and provided a shareholder’s loan of £7m to SESW to meet its operational
needs and financial covenants at the year-end date, of which the £7m loan has been fully repaid
subsequent to the year end. In July 2023 and October 2023, a further £1.3m and £1.3m of shareholder’s
loans was provided to SESW’s financial needs.

The Shareholders of the Company have engaged financial advisors to undertake a strategic review of
the SOGWUK Group’s business, including SESW and as of October 2023 they are in advanced
negotiations with a potential buyer of the sale of the company. The potential sale is not yet finalised
and remains conditional on final agreement and approvals, therefore it remains uncertain at the date of
signing these accounts if the proposed sale will proceed.
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